
 

 

NOTICE OF A MEETING 

 

COMMISSION MEETING 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

111 LIBERTY STREET, SUITE 100 

COLUMBUS, OHIO 43215 

SCIOTO CONFERENCE ROOM 

Thursday, September 10, 2015, 1:30 p.m. 

AGENDA 

 

1:30 p.m. 1. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

1:31 p.m. 2. Welcome and Introductions – Matt Greeson, MORPC Acting Chair 

 

1:35 p.m. 3. Community Member Spotlight: Distracted Driving Education – Grove 

City Driving Simulator – Richard “Ike” Stage, City of Grove City Mayor  

 

1:40 p.m. 4. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of July 9, 2015 Commission Meeting Minutes 

b. Proposed Resolution 14-15: “TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE 

DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH THE 

COLUMBUS FOUNDATION FOR UP TO $500,000 FOR A HOME 

REPAIR PROGRAM” 

 

1:41 p.m. 5. Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock, MORPC Executive 

Director 

 

1:50 p.m. 6. Proposed Resolution 12-15: “ACCEPTING THE VILLAGE OF NEW 

LEXINGTON (PERRY COUNTY) AS A MEMBER OF THE MID-OHIO 

REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION” – William Murdock, MORPC 

Executive Director 

 

 Special Guests and Presentations 

 

1:55 p.m. 7. Member Spotlight: Metro Parks – Tim Moloney, Metro Parks 

Executive Director 

 Committees 

 

2:00 p.m. 8. Regional Policy Roundtable – Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher, Regional 

Policy Roundtable Chair 

a. Legislative Update – Laura Koprowski, MORPC Public & 

Government Affairs Director 

b. Proposed Resolution 13-15: “SUPPORTING SUB. HB 176 THAT 

WILL CREATE THE GASEOUS FUEL VEHICLE CONVERSION 

PROGRAM” – Laura Koprowski, MORPC Public & Government 

Affairs Director 



 
 
Commission Meeting Agenda 

September 10, 2015 

Page 2 

 

2:10 p.m. 9. Sustainability Advisory Committee – Steve Stolte, Sustainability 

Advisory Council Chair 

 Regional Sustainability Agenda 

 

 10. Transportation Policy Committee – Matt Greeson, MORPC Acting 

Chair  

2:15 p.m. a. Call to Order – Matt Greeson, MORPC Acting Chair 

2:16 p.m. b. Metropolitan Planning Organization Report  

 Transportation Systems & Funding – Thea Walsh, Director 

 Planning & Environment – Kerstin Carr, Director 

o High Crash Location Lists 

o 10 Best Places to Walk 

 

2:30 p.m. c. Consent Agenda 

 Approval of July 9, 2015 Transportation Policy Committee 

Meeting Minutes 

 Proposed Resolution T-16-15: “ADOPTING THE 2015 PUBLIC 

INVOLVEMENT PLAN” 

 Proposed Resolution T-17-15: “ESTABLISHING PRIORITIES 

FOR APPLICATIONS SUBMITTED TO THE OHIO STATEWIDE 

URBAN CMAQ COMMITTEE” 

 Proposed Resolution T-18-15: “ACCEPTING THE PWP 

COMPLETION REPORT FOR STATE FISCAL YEAR 2015” 

 

2:31 p.m. d. Proposed Resolution T-15-15: “AMENDING THE STATE FISCAL 

YEAR (SFY) 2016-2019 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT 

PROGRAM” – Thea Walsh, MORPC Transportation Systems & 

Funding Director 

 

2:35 p.m. e. Freeway Traffic Management Study – David Holstein, Ohio 

Department of Transportation, Office of Roadway Engineering 

Office Administrator 

 

2:40 p.m. f. Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) 

 MTP Candidate Projects & Update – Thea Walsh, MORPC 

Transportation Systems & Funding Director 

 

2:45 p.m. g. Adjourn Transportation Policy Committee – Matt Greeson, 

MORPC Acting Chair 

 

2:46 p.m. 11. Motion to Approve Actions of the Transportation Policy Committee 

 

2:47 p.m. 12. Other Business 

 

3:00 p.m. 13. Adjourn – Matt Greeson, MORPC Acting Chair 

 

http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/forms/1.MORPC_SAC_Brochure_Final_Update%20(00000002).pdf
http://www.morpc.org/transportation/safety/crash-data/index


 
 
Commission Meeting Agenda 

September 10, 2015 

Page 3 

 

 
PLEASE NOTIFY SHARI SAUNDERS AT 614-233-4169 OR ssaunders@morpc.org  

IF YOU REQUIRE SPECIAL ASSISTANCE. 
 

 
The next Commission Meeting is 

Thursday, October 8, 2015 at 1:30 p.m. 
111 Liberty Street, Suite 100 

Columbus, Ohio 43215 
 

 
 
 
When you arrive in MORPC’s lobby, a video screen will display the day’s meetings. 
Each meeting will list a phone extension. Use the phone in the lobby to call the 
extension and someone will come escort you to the meeting.   
 
 
When parking in MORPC's parking lot, please be sure to park in a MORPC visitor 
space or in a space marked with an “M”. Handicapped parking is available at the 
side of MORPC’s building. MORPC is accessible by CBUS. 

 

 

mailto:ssaunders@morpc.org


Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 

Commission  

Meeting Minutes 

 

 

Thursday, July 9, 2015 

1:30 p.m. 

 

Commission Members 

Karen Angelou 

Herb Asher 

Pat Blayney 

Randy Bowman 

Susan Brobst 

Marilyn Brown 

Ron Bullard 

Greg Butcher 

Steve Campbell 

Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher 

Franklin Christman 

Derrick Clay 

Ben Collins 

Mike Compton 

Karl Craven 

Tracie Davies 

Michael Dorman 

Michael Ebert 

Terry Emery 

Steve Gladman 

Matt Greeson 

Marian Harris 

Dan Havener 

Tom Homan 

Matt Huffman 

Pamela Hykes O’Grady 

Jenna Jackson 

Erik Janas 

Anthony Jones 

Steve Kennedy 

Ben Kessler 

Benjamin King 

Bill LaFayette 

Jim Lenner 

Greg Lestini 

Barb Lewis 

Brian Lorenz 

Christopher Manegold 

Glenn Marzluf 

Dana McDaniel 

Rory McGuiness 

Gary Merrell 

Bonnie Michael 

Erin Miller 

Robert Myers 

Victor Paini 

Eileen Paley 

Vince Papsidero 

Eric Phillips 

Rob Platte 

Bryan Rhoads 

Eric Richter 

Dean Ringle 

Michael Schadek 

Elissa Schneider 

Ashley Senn 

David Simmons 

Ike Stage 

Joe Stefanov 

Steve Stolte 

Scott Tourville 

Bill Vance 

Nancy White

Associate Members 

Jennifer Fish Nikki Scarpitti  

Policy Committee Members 

Mike Maleski 

David Paul 

Tory Richardson 

Thom Slack 

Curtis Stitt 

Staff 

Rachel Beeman 

Jacob Boehk 

Bernice Cage 

Kerstin Carr 

Mark Crosten 

Daniel Eisenberg 

Cynthia Etu 

Mary Ann Frantz 

Joe Garrity 

Nick Gill 

Shawn Hufstedler 

Ciel Klein 

Laura Koprowski 

Eileen Leuby 

William Murdock 

Deborah Murphy 

Christina O’Keeffe 

Rob Powell 

Nancy Reger 

Shari Saunders 

Maria Schaper 

Bevan Schneck 

Sandy Sechang 

Thea Walsh 

Brandi Whetstone 

Guests 

Conner Downard, Violet Township 

Jeremy Druhot, Delaware County 

Frank Kohstall, Ohio Treasurer’s Office 

Josh Mandel, Treasurer of Ohio 

Cornell Robertson, FCEO 

Christopher Sandine, City of Reynoldsburg 

Steve Sheperd, ODOT District 6 

Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill & Ritter 

 



Commission Meeting Minutes 

July 9, 2015 

Page 2 

 
Chair Eric Phillips called the Commission Meeting to order at 1:35 p.m. followed by the pledge of allegiance. 

 

Welcome and Introductions – Eric Phillips, MORPC Chair 

Chair Phillips introduced summer interns from two internship programs. Jacob Boehk, Rachael Beeman and 

Sandy Sechang are with The Ohio State City & Regional Planning Program working at MORPC. Participants in 

the MORPC Local Government Internship Program are Christopher Sandine (City of Reynoldsburg), Jeremy 

Druhot (Delaware County), and Conner Downard, (Violet Township).  

 

Chair Phillips introduced and welcomed new MORPC members Eric Richter, Union County Administrator and 

Glenn Marzluf, Del-Co Water Company General Manager/CEO representing Delaware County. 

 

Thom Slack introduced Steve Sheperd, ODOT District 6 Local Programs Liaison and alternate for the 

Transportation Advisory and Transportation Policy Committees. 

 

Community Leader Spotlight: Ohiocheckbook.com – Josh Mandel, Ohio Treasurer 

Ohio Treasurer Josh Mandel introduced and demonstrated ohiocheckbook.com, a transparency project that 

lists all of the state’s spending. As a result of the project, Ohio is ranked first in the nation for fiscal 

transparency. Over 150 local governments are already participating and the Treasurer’s office is in discussion 

with 358 other local governments. The project is free to local governments. Treasurer Mandel encouraged 

MORPC members to sign-up if they are not already participating. Contact project lead Frank Kohstall 

(Frank.Kohstall@tos.ohio.gov ) to sign-up. 

 

Consent Agenda 

Erik Janas made a motion to approve the consent agenda, second by Marilyn Brown; motion passed.   

 

Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock, MORPC Executive Director 

William Murdock reported that MORPC is participating in ShareOhio. The ShareOhio program was presented 

by State Auditor Dave Yost at the May 14, 2015 Commission meeting. 

 

At summer’s end an Ad Hoc Committee will be formed to evaluate the pilot summer intern programs and help 

shape the programs’ future progress. Let William Murdock know if you are interested in serving on the 

committee. The goal is to have next year’s programs proposed and ready to go in the fall.    

 

William Murdock commended MORPC Team Members for their work on the Impact of Trail Study and the MTP 

Interactive Map, both being presented later in the meeting. 

 

Congratulations to the City of Columbus for being named the 2015 Top Intelligent Community by the 

Intelligent Community Forum. insight2050 was pointed out in the recognition. 

 
MORPC hired a new MORPC Team Member to help with insight2050 planning for Phase 2. Fundraising for 

Phase 2 is going well and anticipated to be complete by the end of the summer. MORPC Team Members are 

happy to come to your community to present insight2050 information. 

 

MORPC is a member of the National Association of Regional Councils (NARC). NARC depends on involvement 

from members. NARC has two governing boards, one made of elected officials. Let Mr. Murdock know if you 

would like to be involved. 

 

William Murdock gave an overview of Chip-In, a national award winning project developed by MORPC Intern 

Jacob Boehk. Chip-In is a developing mobile app that allows community members to volunteer time, donate 

funds, and start projects within communities while allowing users to engage on social media to share their 

projects.   

 

 

http://ohiotreasurer.gov/Transparency/Ohios-Online-Checkbook
mailto:Frank.Kohstall@tos.ohio.gov
http://shareohio.gov/Account/Index.aspx?ReturnUrl=%2f


Commission Meeting Minutes 

July 9, 2015 

Page 3 

 
Congratulations and thank you to ODOT for their swift execution in reopening I-70 after the fiery accident that 

closed an overpass at the west side I-270/I-70 interchange. The total repair is expected to be completed by 

August. 

 

Eileen Leuby presented the Membership Quarterly Report. The report highlighted membership outreach 

visits/events, upcoming events, the summer intern programs and MORPC’s Grant Finder Service. Codes for 

the Grant Finder Service were provided to member communities. 

 

Proposed Resolution 11-15: “ADOPTING A FEE SCHEDULE FOR USE IN ASSESSING MEMBERS IN 2016” – 

Shawn Hufstedler, MORPC Chief of Staff & Finance Director 

Shawn Hufstedler presented the 2016 dues schedule including a 1.5 cent per capita increase for all full 

members of MORPC in accordance with the five-year members’ dues plan. Ike Stage made a motion to 

approve Resolution 11-15, second by Anthony Jones; motion passed. 

 

Committees 

 

Transportation Policy Committee – Eric Phillips, MORPC Chair  

Chair Eric Phillips called the Transportation Policy Committee Session to order at 2:18 p.m. The session 

adjourned at 2:30 p.m. Separate minutes are attached. 

 

Approve Actions of the Transportation Policy Committee 

Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher made a motion to approve the actions of the Transportation Policy Committee, 

second by Karen Angelou; motion passed. 

 

Data Site Task Force – Anthony Jones, Data Site Task Force Co-Chair 

Anthony Jones presented the Data Task Force Update. The final report is projected to be complete by 

September or October 2015. 

 

Sustainability Advisory Committee Update – Steve Stolte, Sustainability Advisory Committee Chair 

Steve Stolte reported the Organics Diversion Subcommittee of the Materials Management Working Group and 

the Regional Food Council held their last meeting in June.  The subcommittee is formulating recommendations 

to identify information and resource gaps, and to improve and expand upon existing infrastructure for a 

sustainable organics recycling model. Recommendations will be finalized in August and shared with the City of 

Columbus Green Team Waste Reduction Committee, SWACO, and Ohio EPA. 

 
Work continues on public service announcements featuring air quality and RideSolutions messages.  

Additional PSAs are in development and will continue to air through the end of August. 

 
Copies of the Sustaining Scioto Executive Summary were provided to attendees. The full Sustaining Scioto 

Adaptive Management Plan is on MORPC’s website.  

 
 Impact of Trails Study – Kerstin Carr, MORPC Planning & Environment Director 

Kerstin Carr gave a presentation on the Impacts of Central Ohio Trails. Ms. Carr recognized and thanked 

Amanda McEldowney, MORPC Lead Team Member on this project. Impact of Trail Study Fact Sheets were 

provided to attendees. This was the first trail impact study in the nation conducted on a regional network of 

trails. The purpose of the study was to better understand the value residents and businesses in Central Ohio 

place on their off-street, multi-use trails, and to put these values in economic terms to the extent possible.  

Twelve million miles are traveled annually on Central Ohio trails. The final report is expected to be released 

late July 2015. 

 

Regional Policy Roundtable – Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher, Roundtable Chair 

Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher reported that Ohio Rep. Heather Bishoff and Marysville Council Member J.R. Rausch 

will be guest speakers at the July 21, 2015 Regional Policy Roundtable. In August, work will begin on the 

http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/2015JulyMemberReport.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/2015JulyDTFUpdate.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/forms/1.SustainingScioto_ExecutiveSummary_FinalUpdate.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/forms/1.Final%20Adaptive%20Mgmt%20Plan.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/forms/1.Final%20Adaptive%20Mgmt%20Plan.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/2015TrailImpact.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/ImpactofTrailsFactSheets.pdf


Commission Meeting Minutes 

July 9, 2015 

Page 4 

 
2016 MORPC Public Policy Agenda. If you are interested in helping, notify William Murdock or Laura 

Koprowski. 

 

 Legislative Update – Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill & Ritter and Laura Koprowski, MORPC Public & 

Government Affairs Director 
Steve Tugend and Laura Koprowski gave the legislative update and highlighted the following issues: 

o HB 64 – State biennial budget 

o HB 72/SB 185 – Energy Special Improvement Districts (SID) 

o Federal transportation bill 

o TIGER Grant 

o Bike safety 

 

See the July 2015 Legislative Update for other legislative news. 

 

 Review and Discussion of Legislation in Response to the U.S. EPA’s Waters of the United States (WOTUS) 

Final Rule 
William Murdock, Laura Koprowski, and Kerstin Carr gave a presentation on WOTUS (Waters of the US) & 

SB1140 Discussion. WOTUS background information was sent to the Commission earlier this week. The 

Sustainability Advisory Committee, the Greenways & Water Quality Working Group and the Regional Policy 

Roundtable held a conference call to discuss WOTUS. The Executive Committee has discussed WOTUS twice 

and came to a consensus on a Possible MORPC Position on SB114 – WOTUS. Copies of the possible 

position were distributed to participants. 

 

Joe Stefanov made a motion, second by Rob Platte, that MORPC take the position of an interested party 

primarily outlined in Option 1 of the memo that was distributed to the Commission members earlier this 

week, and that the letter shall be written to reflect the various views of our members relative to SB 1140 

and the WOTUS Rule, and that the executive director shall be authorized to send the letter following review 

and comments by the Executive Committee and approval by the officers. The motion passed with three in 

opposition (Pat Blayney, Ron Bullard, and Gary Merrell). 

 

The Commission Meeting adjourned at 3:20 p.m.  

 

 

 

 

Matt Greeson, Acting Chair 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission  

http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/2015JulyLegUp.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/WOTUS.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/WOTUS.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/WOTUS-SB1140MORPCPosition.pdf


 

 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Christina O’Keeffe, Director 

Energy & Air Quality 

 

DATE: 

 

September 4, 2015 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 14-15: "TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE 

DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH THE COLUMBUS 

FOUNDATION FOR UP TO $500,000 FOR A HOME REPAIR PROGRAM 

FOR WEINLAND PARK" 
 

Since 2010, MORPC has administered an external home repair program in the 

Weinland Park neighborhood with support through The Columbus Foundation (TCF) 

and Campus Partners (CP).  The Weinland Park Exterior Home Repair (WPEHR) 

program provides grants for owner-occupied single- or two-family homes with 

household income of 120 percent or less of the area median income (AMI).  As part 

of the program, MORPC will assist homeowners on addressing code violations as well 

as preparing WPEHR clients’ applications for the City of Columbus’ Residential Tax 

Incentive (RTI). 

 

Total investment to date has reached $1.45 million in WPEHR with significant results 

of increased property values achieved in the community since 2010. TCF funded the 

program a second time in 2011 and again in 2013 contributing a combined 

$900,000, while Campus Partners has provided$550,000 in the WPEHR program.  

More than 60 homeowners have participated in the program.    

 

The success of this investment, along with other investments focused on 

strengthening the Weinland Park neighborhood, are producing results in home 

values, as evidenced by increased list and sale prices of Weinland Park homes.  From 

2010 to 2015, the average list price for homes in the Weinland Park neighborhood 

rose from $107,920 to $201,527 (87 percent).  During this same time, the average 

sale price increased from $101,080 to 204,404 (102 percent). Other benefits 

include enhanced streetscape views, an improved health and safety environment for 

the homeowners, and extended longevity for the home. 

 

The Columbus Foundation invited MORPC to apply for additional funding to continue 

the exterior home repair program and augment the services to include assisting 

income-eligible homeowners who receive code violations.  MORPC is applying for 

$500,000 in continued funding.   

 

Attachment:  Resolution 14-15 



RESOLUTION 14-15 

 

“TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH THE COLUMBUS 

FOUNDATION FOR UP TO $500,000 FOR A HOME REPAIR PROGRAM FOR WEINLAND PARK” 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC has received $1.45 million since 2010 from The Columbus Foundation and 

Campus Partners for a home repair program in Weinland Park; and 

 

WHEREAS, the benefits of this investment include increased property value for the homeowners and 

surrounding neighborhood, enhanced streetscape views, an improved health and safety environment 

for the homeowners, and extended longevity for the home; and 

 

WHEREAS, The Columbus Foundation has invited MORPC to apply for up to $500,000 in funding to 

continue the Weinland Park Exterior Home Repair Program (WPEHR); and 

 

WHEREAS, if funded, MORPC will continue to manage the WPEHR and augment its services to assist 

homeowners participating in the program with  addressing City of Columbus code violations and ap-

plying for the City of Columbus’ Residential Tax Incentive (RTI); now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the executive director is hereby authorized to enter into an agreement with The 

Columbus Foundation for up to $500,000 for a home repair program in Weinland 

Park. 

 

Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to make home repair grants for eligible 

homeowners during the time of performance under the foregoing agreements. 

 

Section 3. That the executive director is authorized to approve one or more extensions for per-

formance of services under the foregoing agreements and change orders for 

amounts up to the financial authorization levels in the MORPC bylaws without further 

authorization from this committee.   

 

Section 4. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall 

deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 5.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 
 

 

                                                                                

Matt Greeson, Acting Chair 

      MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

Effective date: September 10, 2015 

Submitted by: Christina O’Keeffe, Director, Energy & Air Quality 

Prepared by:  Ruth Yorston, Program Specialist, Energy & Air Quality 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: September 10, 2015 

 



1 
 

 

 

MORPC Monthly Agency Report 

July and August 2015 

 
Public & Government Affairs  

Laura Koprowski – lkoprowski@morpc.org 

 

Government Affairs 

The Regional Policy Roundtable met July 21, 2015. Agenda topics included: A legislative member 

spotlight featuring State Representative Heather Bishoff; formation of the 2016 Public Policy Agenda 

Working Group; Roundtable member presentation by City of Marysville Councilmember J.R. Rausch; 

state and federal legislative updates; and review of MORPC’s position on Waters of the United States 

Rule (WOTUS). The next meeting will take place Tuesday, October 27, 2015. 

 

Team members along with Kegler, Brown Hill & Ritter participated in meetings with our state 

legislative delegation to discuss the 2015 Public Policy Agenda and other top advocacy efforts. 

Meetings took place with Senator Bacon and Representatives Bishoff and Duffey. They also 

participated in the Columbus Chamber’s Government Affairs Roundtable event with Congressman 

Steve Stivers on August 21, 2015. 

 

In support of our regional efforts to attract and retain defense-related jobs, team members attended 

a welcome reception for the new Commander of the 121st Refueling Wing of the Ohio National 

Guard, Colonel Mark Auer, on August 26, 2015. The reception was hosted by Kegler, Brown, Hill & 

Ritter and the Columbus Chamber.  

 

State of the Region 2016 

Plans for our annual 2016 State of the Region luncheon event are underway. We are excited to 

announce the keynote speaker for our signature event will be Dr. James Johnson. Dr. Johnson is the 

Director of the Urban Investment Strategies Center at the University of North Carolina - Chapel Hill. 

Dr. Johnson’s presentation, “Disruptive Demographics”, is an engaging and eye-opening discussion 

about the dramatic demographic changes occurring in our country and their impact on community 

and economic development.  

 

The State of the Region is our premiere membership event and offers a variety of supporting 

partnership opportunities for our local government members, businesses, universities and non-

profits. For more information about sponsorship levels for the MORPC Annual State of the Region 

Luncheon, please contact Eileen Leuby at eleuby@morpc.org or 614-233-4135.  

 

Community Outreach and Marketing 

MORPC hosted a Community Leaders Public Transportation Roundtable in partnership with the 

Central Ohio Transit Authority (COTA.) The featured speaker was Bob Morgan, the President and CEO 

of the Charlotte Chamber of Commerce. Morgan told representatives from government, transit, 

development and business that it took business leadership combined with community support to 

reimagine and reinvent Charlotte's transportation system. A robust discussion among the community 

leaders was facilitated by William Murdock. Additional comments were provided by regional leaders 

such as COTA Board President Dawn Tyler Lee, COTA President and CEO Curtis Stitt, and Yaromir 

Steiner, from Steiner and Associates and Chair of the insight2050 Advisory Committee.  

file:///C:/Users/ssaunders/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/SWF0E07B/lkoprowski@morpc.org
mailto:eleuby@morpc.org


2 
 

MORPC along with 75 other community programs, organizations and businesses participated in this 

year’s Fam Jam event on Saturday, August 29, 2015. The annual family enrichment festival event is 

hosted in partnership by the Franklin County Children Services and Columbus Mayor Michael 

Coleman’s Neighborhood Pride program. It was estimated that approximately 4,000 families 

attended Fam Jam at the downtown Columbus Commons park. 

 

Membership 

See the attachment. 

 

MORPC In the News 

See the attachment for a list of the various news and media articles for June. 

 

Transportation Systems & Funding  

Thea Walsh - twalsh@morpc.org 

 

Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) 

Approximately 3,500 postcards and emails were sent announcing the 2016-2040 MTP Interactive 

Webmap, asking for public input and recommendations for projects. The MTP newsletter with the 

Candidate Project Location Map and list of Candidate Projects was sent to Neighborhood Pride 

Centers, libraries, city engineers and service directors, county engineers and township officials. Over 

240 new projects were suggested and over 350 comments on projects were posted through the 

interactive webmap. Team members continue to coordinate the MTP activities with the Columbus 

Connect planning process and COTA’s NextGen planning process. 

 

Highways 

Team members are providing assistance in terms of future traffic projects for several member 

planning activities including: 

o Powell Comprehensive Plan 

o Westerville Comprehensive Plan 

o SR 161 Western Licking County Corridor Study 

o City of Delaware Thoroughfare Plan Update 

o Easton Area Traffic Projections 

 

Transit/Human Services 

The Groveport shuttle (GREAT) is expected to begin service on September 28, 2015. 

 

A "kickoff" meeting was held for the DATABus Transit Development Plan and Funding Study on 

August 11, 2015. Parsons Brinckerhoff's Tim Reynolds facilitated the meeting with the steering 

committee. DATABus is waiting for its architectural firm to finish revisions to the facility remodel 

plans so that ODOT can give final approval to move forward with the construction bidding. 

 

RideSolutions 

The draft Transportation Demand Management (TDM) strategic plan was completed. It builds off the 

plan developed in 2011 and has undergone internal review for presentation to CAC and TAC at the 

September meetings.  

 

RideSolutions team members along with transportation partners COTA, Yay Bikes!, CoGo Bikes, and 

Car-2-Go participated in Nationwide's monthly sustainability meeting. Approximately 300 of 

Nationwide's green team members across the United States were educated about sustainable 

transportation options to work and travel options during work.  

 

  

file:///C:/Users/ssaunders/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/SWF0E07B/twalsh@morpc.org


3 
 

RideSolutions team members started a new vanpool to Columbus from Zanesville and continue to 

work with J.P. Morgan Chase, Stanley Electric, Crowne Plaza Hotel, Chalmers P. Wylie VA Clinic, and 

the Chillicothe VA Hospital to initiate transportation plans for their employees. 

 

A survey of area employers is being developed to support the Polaris Parkway area collaborative. An 

informational flyer is being developed to distribute to interested parties to educate them on 

transportation and TDM investment in the corridor. 

 

Infrastructure Funding 

Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 

Copies of the Final SFY 2016-2019 TIP were sent to libraries in Delaware, Fairfield, Franklin and 

Licking Counties. A copy of the Short-Range Transit Plan (SRTP) was sent with the TIPs to libraries in 

Franklin County. A Popular TIP (which is a condensed version of the TIP for the general public) is 

being developed. 

 

Transportation Review and Advisory Council (TRAC) 

One-page information sheets on the four projects submitted this year for TRAC funding were 

developed and posted on the MORPC website at http://www.morpc.org/transportation/funding-

grants/trac/index. MORPC is taking comments on the projects through September 11, 2015. These 

comments will be used to prepare recommendations for project rankings established during the 

October committee meetings. 

 

Franklin County Infrastructure Bank 

Franklin County Infrastructure Bank Loan Advisory board recommended the following three projects 

to the Franklin County Commissioners for a 10-year loan at 1.7%: 

o Whitehall - North Hamilton Road Improvements    $550,000 

o Upper Arlington - Municipal Fiber Network  $1,000,000 

o Marble Cliff - Cardigan Water Improvements    $125,000 

 

Ohio Public Works Commission 

Team members met with City of Columbus, OPWC and ODOT officials to review the proposed Phase 

4A Livingston Avenue improvement and determine what, if any, components might be eligible for 

OPWC infrastructure funding in Round 30. 

 

Team members are reviewing the status of 55 active OPWC-funded projects in order to determine 

which older projects may be closed out. Team members will contact Franklin County officials to close 

out the old projects, return additional funding and avoid penalty points for applicants who are 

applying for new projects in Round 30. 

 

Data and Mapping 

Nancy Reger - nreger@morpc.org 

 

Regional Data Site Task Force 

The Regional Data Site Task Force met July 16, 2015 for its final information gathering meeting. 

Discussion centered around governance structures for managing the site, and funding ideas for 

building and maintaining it. The recommendations from the Task Force are being drafted now, and 

the group will come together in October to finalize the recommendations before presenting the 

results to the Commission. 

 

  

http://www.morpc.org/transportation/funding-grants/trac/index
http://www.morpc.org/transportation/funding-grants/trac/index
file:///C:/Users/shufstedler/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/QEPGBLFF/nreger@morpc.org


4 
 

Data Sharing 

The sidewalk inventory GIS file is now available  for viewing on MORPC’s website.  The  interactive 

map is in the Map Room in the Data, Mapping and Tools section. See 

http://arcgiswebadp1.morpc.org/webmaps/sidewalks/index.html. 

 

Data and Mapping’s Role in the Metropolitan Transportation Plan 

The detailed projections for years 2025, 2040, and 2050 being used in the MORPC Metropolitan 

Transportation Plan, the COTA NextGen Plan, and the Connect Columbus plan are available for 

downloading from MORPC’s website, and an interactive map of the projections by community sub-

areas can be accessed through  the Map Room on MORPC’s website at 

http://arcgiswebadp1.morpc.org/webmaps/sidewalks/index.html. 

  

The new interactive map for users to make comments or draw their own ideas directly on the map is 

in full swing. We have received 600 comments and suggestions. Opportunity for providing input 

closed on August 31, 2015.   

 

Data and Mapping team members are now preparing the database for the agency to use when 

evaluating candidate projects. This includes a user interface that includes results from automated 

calculations of quantitative evaluation criteria, and the ability for users to enter qualitative 

statements about the projects and scoring information. In addition, team members are creating a 

webmap for internal use so reviewers can toggle on and off evaluation criteria when making their 

recommendations. 

 

insight2050 Phase 2 

Draft development typologies have been identified and are being mapped using GIS analysis tools. 

The types follow those development types identified in insight2050 as Rural, Suburban Standard, 

Suburban Compact, and Urban, with an additional geographic dimension that includes nodes, 

corridors, neighborhoods and downtowns. The first round of mapping the typologies is nearly 

complete. 

 

Work on the infill directory has taken a back seat to the typology work; however, vacant parcels using 

aerial photography, auditor data, and GIS were identified. Some strategies clarifying what constitutes 

underutilized sites based on work done for the 2016-2040 MTP land use forecasts were laid out. 

 

COSMOS Public Fiber Project 

Data and Mapping is working with representatives from local IT departments' communities that are 

involved with COSMOS (Central Ohio Systems Management Organizational Sharing). They have 

asked MORPC to facilitate shared data sets of public fiber systems and research ways to fund 

connections for the various public fiber systems. We presented basic information to COSMOS in 

Hilliard on July 15, 2015. A subgroup was identified with representatives from Gahanna, Grove City, 

Lancaster, Westerville and Whitehall to provide guidance moving forward. MORPC will present again 

at the October 14, 2015 meeting, which will be held at MORPC. 

 

Homes on the Hill  

The Data and Mapping Department is working with Homes on the Hill to develop a quantifiable 

method for choosing where Homes on the Hill, a non-profit housing agency that works in the 

southwest portion of Franklin County, would get the best return on its investments. We will be using 

address-based data from such sources as the Columbus 311 dataset, county auditor, and Hands on 

Central Ohio in the analysis.  

 

Land Use Projections for Special Transportation Studies 

Every transportation study that uses MORPC’s travel demand model includes a land use component. 

Even though the regional land use projections were recently completed, the projections are adjusted 

http://arcgiswebadp1.morpc.org/webmaps/sidewalks/index.html
http://arcgiswebadp1.morpc.org/webmaps/sidewalks/index.html


5 
 

for special studies because of constraints that don’t lend themselves to actually sizing infrastructure 

needs. The projections for the Delaware City Thoroughfare Plan were recently modified based on 

input from the Delaware County RPC and the Delaware City Planning Department. Another project is 

underway for the Easton area, and modified projections are being reviewed by the City of Columbus, 

Franklin County Economic Development, New Albany, and Gahanna. 

 

Information Requests 

o City of Gahanna - Economic information about Central Ohio cities  

o Ross County - Demographic summaries of Central Ohio cities' population projections in 5- 

year incremental periods 

o City of Columbus – population projections in increments between 2015 and 2040 were 

provided to consultant working Columbus infrastructure plans 

o Groveport/Madison Township – hard copy sidewalk maps 

o Brice – hard copy sidewalk maps 

 

Non-Member Information Requests 

o City of Circleville – population projections in increments between 2015 and 2040 were 

provided to consultant working on an economic revitalization plan for Circleville  

o Dublin City Schools – population estimates for their CAFR 

o Southwestern City Schools – population estimates for their CAFR 

o Franklin County Budget Commission – population estimates for the library districts in 

Franklin County 

 

Mobile Bikeway App 

MORPC’s Data & Mapping and Planning & Environment Departments met with OSU’s Kirwan 

Institute to discuss the possibility of the university helping us develop a mobile app of the regional 

bikeway system. This was a preliminary discussion for the possibility of an App development class 

using MORPC as a class project. The class will not begin until January.   

 

MORPC Planning and Environment Department 

Kerstin Carr - kcarr@morpc.org 

 

Active Transportation Planning 

Team members participated in the monthly “Ohio Bicycle Call.” This month’s call focused on Ohio 

HB154, the 3-foot passing rule,  and ODOT’s provision of the League of American Bicyclist’s ”Quick 

Cycling Guide” to MPOs to share with their communities. Copies will be forthcoming later this 

summer/fall. 

 

Team members attended the “Sitting is the New Smoking” CMC luncheon that addressed the 

importance of implementing policy and design that promotes daily activity.  

 

MORPC team members attended a site visit at the Grandview Goodale Avenue OPWC project. The 

city showcased how it used funds on the project to incorporate Complete Streets components, 

including a bike lane, curbs and gutters, and sidewalks.  

 

Both Orange Township and the Short North Alliance borrowed MORPC's automated infrared 

pedestrian and bicycle counters. The Short North Alliance used the counters to collect volume 

information during the June Gallery Hop. Orange Township collected volume information at eight 

sites throughout the municipality. 

 

  

mailto:kcarr@morpc.org


6 
 

Team members completed a Semi-Annual Volunteer Count report that summarizes results from the 

May 2015 volunteer pedestrian and bicyclist counts. The report is available online at 

http://morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/forms/2.May%202015%20Volunteer%20Count%20Report_U

PDATED.pdf. 

 

Team members participated in an on-road training with Yay Bikes! to learn how Yay Bikes! exposes 

people interested in integrating biking into their travel habits to different bicycling conditions. Yay 

Bikes! added an engineering/planning conversation component to the training so that MORPC team 

members could talk with one another about how the on-road experience influences design and how 

different bicycle infrastructure types are context-sensitive. 

 

MORPC team members met with Columbus’ Division of Traffic Management to bring them up-to-

speed on the progress of the Active Transportation Plan and how it will be coordinated and 

integrated with Connect Columbus. Additionally, Columbus discussed the idea of MORPC 

collaborating with them on their September Connect Columbus charrette and open house. COTA is 

already participating, and it seems to be a sensible partnership to reach out to the public on these 

different yet connected transportation planning initiatives. 

 

Progress on development of the Park & Pedal program continues. The signs were printed and bike 

“fix-it” stations were ordered. Team members produced a project charter to guide project 

development and implementation.  

 

Team members began working toward an update of the Bike Users Map by producing a project 

charter to guide project development and implementation.  

 

Transportation Safety 

Team members participated in the regularly-scheduled Columbus Area Pedestrian Safety Committee 

(CAPS) meeting. At this meeting, current pedestrian education safety campaigns were discussed, 

along with the potential for creating one centered on distracted walking. 

 

Team members participated in the regularly-scheduled Fatality Review Board meeting. During this 

meeting individual fatal crashes were examined in order to identify common themes and inform 

future efforts.  

 

Team members drafted an update of the annual crash fact sheets and shared drafts of the 2012 - 

2014 high-crash locations lists. All lists will be presented during September committee meetings. 

 

The pre-construction meeting for PID 98818 (signal upgrades included in the first phase of the 

Systematic Safety Improvement Pilot Project) at ODOT District 6 reviewed the project plan set with 

the project contractor. 

 

Team members continued work on the Systematic Safety Improvement Pilot Project, Phase 2, which 

focuses on pedestrian safety improvements. MORPC has collected input from communities on 

potential project locations and submitted it to ODOT and the engineering consulting firm for review. 

 

On the "Whistle-Stop Safety Train" tour hosted jointly by the Ohio chapter of Operation Lifesaver and 

Norfolk-Southern, team members listened to presentations from both rail safety advocates and 

freight operations team members. 

 

As part of the OSU Summer Youth Program, team members presented to high school students on 

transportation safety issues such as distracted driving, seat belt usage, and impaired driving. 

 

  

http://morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/forms/2.May%202015%20Volunteer%20Count%20Report_UPDATED.pdf
http://morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/forms/2.May%202015%20Volunteer%20Count%20Report_UPDATED.pdf


7 
 

insight2050 

MORPC hired Jennifer Noll as the new Associate Planner focused on helping implement Phase II of 

insight2050. Her immediate focus is gathering best practices and working on creating an Impact 

Report.  

 

Team members continued outreach of insight2050 during July and August. The following 

presentations were given: 

 Baltimore Village Council 

 COTA Planning Committee 

 Rotary Club of Dublin-Worthington 

 Galena Village Council 

 Grove City SALT – Seniors and Law Enforcement Together 

 EMH&T 

 

The Ohio Osteopathic Heritage Foundation met with team members regarding potential partnership 

opportunities to advance issues in insight2050 related to lifelong communities and Age-Friendly City 

designation. 

 

ULI Columbus and MORPC partnered to offer the ULI Real Estate class on redeveloping aging 

commercial strip centers. The event took place August 27. 

 

Team members facilitated a meeting of the Northwest Area Group in Powell. The City of Powell 

presented on the use of Mind Mixer for public involvement with its Comprehensive Plan, and the City 

of Dublin presented on its canoe access points and all the activities it has planned on the water. 

Eighteen people participated in the meeting. 

 

Team members facilitated a meeting of the Southwest Area Group at the Franklin County Engineer’s 

West Maintenance Facility. The Franklin County Engineer’s Office presented on several infrastructure 

projects and the history of the office. A representative from the State Auditor’s office presented on 

the ShareOhio.gov program. A roundtable discussion followed with sharing of infrastructure and 

planning projects happening with the following organizations: ODOT District 6, City of Columbus, 

Franklin County Engineer, MORPC, and COTA. Fifteen people participated in the meeting. 

 

InfoShare 

Team members facilitated InfoShare meetings with Etna Township, MetroParks, Logan-Union-

Champaign (LUC) Regional Planning Commission, Worthington, Marysville, and Marble Cliff.  

 

Impact of Trails Study 

The Impact of Trails Study is complete. The final report, along with an executive summary, technical 

memoranda, and fact sheets are available online at www.morpc.org/trailstudy. MORPC, MetroParks, 

and Columbus Recreation and Parks held a press conference in early August to publicly release the 

findings. The report received good media coverage. MORPC team members will work with its 

partners to discuss the implementation of the recommendations provided in the final report, 

especially the continuation of regular comprehensive trail user counts. 

 

Greenways & Water Quality Program 

The Central Ohio Greenways (COG) Board had its kick-off meeting at the end of June and consisted of 

a presentation by COG Chair Tony Collins on the structure of the board and a visioning exercise about 

priorities for the board to focus on in the next five years. The members split out into small groups 

based on the Working Teams to brainstorm ideas of projects that can be accomplished in the first 

year. Vice Chair Ted Miller gave an overview of the COG Strategic Plan that will be the focus of the 

board in the coming months.  

file://morpc2/two/Executive%20Management/2.%20COMMISSION/2015%20Commission/07%20-%20July/www.morpc.org/trailstudy


8 
 

A total of six firms responded to the request for proposals to do a COG Board strategic plan. The 

board's executive committee narrowed down the proposals to two finalists and invited both firms to 

come in for interviews. 

 

Riverfest continued with sold-out events on Big Walnut Creek and the Scioto River. The Big Walnut 

Creek event was a 2-mile paddle from Nafzger Park to Helsel Park. Thirty people participated. The 

Scioto River event was in partnership with the City of Dublin and included a 3-mile paddle from 

O'Shaughnessy Dam to beneath the I-270 overpass. Twenty-nine people participated.  

 

MORPC is partnering with Franklin Soil & Water Conservation District (FSWCD) as a subcontractor in 

applying for Ohio EPA’s “319 Grant.” The grant proposal is intended to focus on regional watershed 

implementation support projects in the Mid-Scioto Watershed (Delaware, Franklin, and Union 

Counties). MORPC's role will focus on facilitating meetings, helping identify critical watershed areas 

where implementation is needed, outreach assistance, and facilitating public involvement. Grant 

awards announcements are expected in Fall 2015 with funding allocations in January 2016.  

 

Team members attended a meeting with FSWCD and its outreach consultant, BlueStem 

Communications, to discuss the new effort to change behaviors related to lawn care practices in 

Central Ohio. MORPC will continue to be involved to learn about BlueStem’s environmentally focused 

social change model and to assist FSWCD with spreading the new marketing materials once they are 

developed. 

 

Regional Food Council 

The July Regional Food Council meeting had a total of 16 people in attendance. The meeting entailed 

vigorous and helpful discussions of funding outreach efforts and establishing an effort to promote 

institutional purchasing and loan-ready projects. Team members met with the Regional Food Council 

co-chairs to discuss a new project around identifying the institutional demand of local food and 

identifying potential fundraising strategies.  

 

Summit on Sustainability  

The Summit on Sustainability is October 2, 2015. MORPC program team members put together an 

outstanding conference that will highlight sustainability in four tracks: Policy, Land Use Impacts, 

Energy & Environment, and Transportation. All 12 break-out sessions are filled with speakers and 

sponsors. The luncheon program is focusing on an energy-related panel discussion as well as the 

presentation of the Green Leader and Green Collaboration awards. Registration and sponsorship 

opportunities can be found at: www.morpc.org/summit. 

 

National Safe Routes to School Conference 

Team members, together with conference partners, are making great progress on planning the 

conference. Keynote speakers for all three days are confirmed. Nationwide Insurance offered to be 

the program sponsor of the conference at $75,000. A Save-the-Date email was sent and a call for 

proposals was issued. The program committee identified the tracks for the break-out sessions: 

health, safety, policy, equity, partnerships, and impact/sustainability. They are now working on 

identifying workshops and tours that can be offered as part of the event. More information about the 

conference can be found at: www.saferoutesconference.org.  

 

Energy & Air Quality 

Christina O'Keeffe - cokeeffe@morpc.org 

  

Air Quality  

MORPC, in partnership with the Ohio Air Quality Development Authority (OAQDA), contracted with 

ABC6 on a comprehensive marketing package for the month of June, and extended this marketing 

through August 31, 2015. Five air quality awareness PSAs were produced and deployed on ABC6 

file://morpc2/two/Executive%20Management/2.%20COMMISSION/2015%20Commission/07%20-%20July/www.morpc.org/summit
file://morpc2/two/Executive%20Management/2.%20COMMISSION/2015%20Commission/07%20-%20July/www.saferoutesconference.org%20
file:///C:/Users/ssaunders/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/SWF0E07B/cokeeffe@morpc.org


9 
 

and their affiliates. Additionally, these PSAs were placed extensively as video pre-roll, which is a 

video advertisement or PSA that appears prior to an online video. This targeted pre-roll campaign 

reached geographically appropriate users of websites such as WebMd, YouTube, and CNN. The pre-

roll campaign guarantees 100,000 household impressions by August 31.  

OAQDA Executive Director Chad Smith made an appearance on Good Day Marketplace on July 23. 

This appearance (link) reached 22,233 homes and approximately 51,300 viewers. 

 

MORPC issued an Air Quality Alert for July 29, 2015 the second in the 2015 ozone season. The 

weather conditions combined with pollutant carry over made conditions favorable for ozone 

formation. The AQI was forecasted to exceed 100 on that day, however the Columbus Region did not 

experience an ozone exceedance. In situations when ozone is forecasted to reach an unhealthy 

level, MORPC will issue the Alert as a public health service to err on the side of protecting public 

health. 

 

Energy & Air Quality Working Group 

The working group met on July 28, 2015; the same day that the Air Quality Alert was issued. The 

group received a summary of the process for pushing the alerts out to the public and members were 

encouraged to share the Alert information with their networks and constituents. April Kasun from the 

Ohio Development Services Agency presented about the various loan programs available to support 

alternative energy and energy efficiency projects. Discussion ensued on new ozone standards 

anticipated in October and alternative modes of transportation, including the “Transit Pass Pilot 

Program” with the Capital Crossroads Special Improvement District. 

 

Clean Power Plan Subcommittee 

The Clean Power Plan was announced by President Obama on August 3, 2015 as a step towards 

reducing carbon emissions from power plants. This subcommittee was formed to draw upon the 

expertise of the Energy & Air Quality Working Group in order to gain a better understanding of the 

proposal and the potential impacts (pros and cons) on the Central Ohio Region. This committee held 

their first call on August 24, 2015 and additional calls will be scheduled in September.  

 

Residential Housing Services 
Franklin County Housing Repair and Rehabilitation 

As of June 30, 2015, MORPC has completed the construction on households receiving service 

through the 2013 Franklin County Urgent Needs program with 66 units of service for 55 households. 

Final billing and reporting is currently in process.  

 

MORPC continues work on the 2014 funding agreement which runs through December of 2015 with 

45 units of service identified for 44 households. Of these 45 units, 15 are complete, 13 are in the 

construction phase, and the rest are in the applications through the bidding process stages. 

   

MORPC is in the process of executing the new Franklin County agreement for the 2015 funding 

round.   

 

The Rehab team is also managing the final phase of the Franklin County Single-Family Rehabilitation 

program, which is on schedule for completion by end date in November 2015. The final project is 

under construction.    

 

United Way of Central Ohio – Franklinton Neighborhood Home Repair 

All seven of the United Way Franklinton first round projects are complete. The second round funding 

of the United Way Franklinton program is underway with intake of eligible clients, application and 

initial onsite work.    

 

http://www.myfox28columbus.com/news/features/good-day-marketplace/stories/GDM-Ohio-Air-Quality-Development-Authority-OAQDA-171205.shtml


10 
 

Weinland Park Home Repair 

The Rehab team has identified all of the projects for the final round of the Weinland Park program. 

Overall, nearly 80% of the work is completed.  

 

Near East Side Exterior Home Repair Program 

The initial funding through the partnership with PACT and Homeport is nearly complete. This program 

consists of four projects that are all in contract. Three clients’ homes are completed with the final 

inspections expected to be completed in next month. MORPC reported the program results and 

created a PowerPoint presentation for PACT and Homeport. PACT and Homeport presented this 

PowerPoint report to their board and the agencies were approved for a second round of this pilot 

program. This new round is expected to begin this fall with client applications, work inspections, and 

the bidding process. Construction may not begin until late winter or early spring 2016 depending on 

the conditions of the winter season.    

 

Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP) 

MORPC is working with City of Columbus on a new NSP-2 agreement that utilizes recaptured funds 

from previous MORPC work. The new program includes strategic partnerships with COCIC and 

Homeport. 

 

Residential Energy Efficiency Programs 

WarmChoice 

The WarmChoice program is ahead of year-to-date goals as MORPC has conducted initial inspections 

for 60 percent of the total of households to be served in 2015. In addition, MORPC has completed all 

eligible services for forty percent of total households.  MORPC will focus efforts during the remaining 

year on heating and weatherization measures installed by contractors and final inspections 

completed through December 31, 2015. 
 

Home Weatherization Assistance Program (HWAP) 

The 2014 State of Ohio HWAP Program ended June 30, 2015, and was closed out administratively 

with the final reconciled report submitted in August. MORPC achieved our goal of expending all 

available federal funding and completed 103 percent of required households served, exceeding our 

annual goal. MORPC also executed the agreement for new funding for next program year from July 1, 

2015–June 30, 2016. Work is underway to achieve or exceed the goal of serving 69 households.  

 

Electric Partnership Program (EPP) 

The 2015 State of Ohio EPP Program has been underway since July 1, 2015 with a dedicated focus 

on baseload audits to support MORPC’s increased funding allocation of $300,000.   

 

American Electric Power-Community Assistance Program (AEP-CAP) 

The AEP CAP program is mid-way through this year’s 8-month contract (April thru December) and 

production is on pace with 38 percent of the budget allocation submitted for completed projects. 

 

High Efficiency Showerhead Pilot 

MORPC, in partnership with the City of Columbus Department of Public Utilities (DPU), is offering free 

installation of high efficiency showerheads to help customers conserve energy and water and save 

money. The partnership bolsters savings through leveraging MORPC’s energy efficiency program 

expertise and DPU’s water conservation knowledge. To be eligible for this program, clients must be 

both a Columbus City water customer and meet the requirements of MORPC’s Residential Energy 

Efficiency programs.  

 

Materials Management Working Group 

The July 22, 2015 meeting was a site-visit to the Rumpke Material Recovery Facility.  The next 

meeting is September 23, 2015 at 10 am and will include a presentation, updates from the organics 



11 
 

diversion subcommittee, and other items of interest. All are welcome to join.  

 

Organics Diversion Subcommittee 

This joint sub-committee of the Materials Management Working Group and Regional Food Council 

reviewed and commented on the summary and recommendations document.  The document is 

being finalized and will be shared with the working groups and Sustainability Advisory Committee 

next.  Initial information from the subcommittee’s work was presented at the July 21, 2015 

Sustainability Advisory Committee meeting.  

 

Energy Special Improvement Districts (E-SIDs) and Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) 

MORPC team members have been preparing efforts to initiate a regional district under current law, 

when a property owner petitions one of its member communities in the formation of the district for 

an eligible energy project. Team members also evaluated Senate Bill 185 (to revise the law 

governing special improvement districts created for the purpose of developing and implementing 

plans for special energy improvement projects) and attended a legislative committee hearing.   

 

Sustainability Advisory Committee  

In coordination with the Planning & Environment Department, Energy & Air Quality Team members 

support the committee and plan for upcoming meetings. A meeting was held on July 21, 2015 by the 

SAC members that consisted of presentation by member Jack Knapp, representing the Materials 

Management working group, a discussion on organics waste diversion work by MORPC and its 

partners, and consideration and vote on the green awards presented at the Summit on Sustainability 

scheduled for October 2, 2015. MORPC team members also presented on programming updates 

and the new Regional Policy Roundtable document.  

 

Administration 

Shawn Hufstedler – shufstedler@morpc.org 

 

Through a Local Government Efficiency Program grant, MORPC hired Tracy Owens of 3-Point 

Consulting to help facilitate a Purchasing and Accounts Payable Process Efficiency. This included 

mapping the current process, identifying areas for improvement, and revising the process to be more 

efficient. The new process for purchasing includes a 40% reduction in steps from the original process 

and the accounts payable process has been reduced by 47%. MORPC Finance team members are in 

the midst of implementing the revised process. 

 

MORPC again received the Ohio Auditor of State Award with Distinction for our 2014 Comprehensive 

Annual Financial Report (CAFR). The award is presented for excellence in financial reporting and is 

provided to entities that file a CAFR and timely financial reports in accordance with GAAP and receive 

a clean audit report with no findings.  

 

The Finance team has two new members as of August 3, 2015, filling the two vacancies on the 

Finance team. Our new accountants are Danielle Spencer, who is primarily responsible for accounts 

receivable and payroll, and Nichole Goodman, who is primarily responsible for assisting with 

budgeting, grant management and the month-end close process. They are welcome additions to the 

team and have hit the ground running.  

 

Human Resources 

Deborah Murphy – dmurphy@morpc.org 

 

Open Positions Update 

MORPC's Energy & Air Quality's Rehab Specialist and the Associate Planner 2050 positions are filled.  

 

file:///C:/Users/ssaunders/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/SWF0E07B/shufstedler@morpc.org
file:///C:/Users/ssaunders/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/SWF0E07B/dmurphy@morpc.org


12 
 

The 2015 MORPC Fringe and Benefit Survey was sent to participants August 14, 2015 and is  

published on the MORPC web site at 
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/0831152015FinalSurveyResults.pdf.  

 

Administrative Services 

The new Darby and Olentangy Conference rooms are complete and ready for use.  

 

Information Technology 

The agency is currently going through an IT assessment of our IT structure and capabilities.  

 

  

http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/0831152015FinalSurveyResults.pdf


13 
 

ATTACHMENT 

Membership Report 

For MORPC’s township members, an evening workshop is scheduled for September 29, 2015 

beginning at 5:30pm. The workshop program is featuring a keynote presentation by Jill Tangeman, a 

partner at Vorys, Sater, Seymour and Pease law firm, about tools for effective building and property 

code management. The fee is $25 per person. Register with Membership Coordinator Eileen Leuby 

at 614-233-4135 or eleuby@morpc.org.  

 

MORPC team members presented an update to the Delaware County Commissioners and 

visited the following local government members: the Cities of Gahanna, Canal Winchester, 

Pickerington, Hilliard, and Delaware; the  Villages of Lithopolis, Marble Cliff, Somerset, Sunbury and 

Galena; and Bloom, Madison and Jerome Townships.  

 

Online Communications Efforts 

MORPC kicked off a new and exciting campaign this year to find out where the top 10 places to take 

a walk in Central Ohio are located. The "Top 10 Walks in Central Ohio" is largely a social media 

competition that will run from August 15, 2015 to September 15, 2015 focused on bringing 

recognition to the transportation and sustainability importance of walking. After a panel evaluates 

suggestions submitted by you, your friends, and your community, MORPC will make public the 

locations that make it into the top 10! You can track the campaign by checking out MORPC’s social 

media outlets and looking for the #top10walks. To make a submission, e-mail Maggie Walsh at 

mwalsh@morpc.org with a picture of your favorite place to walk, the location, and a brief statement 

on why it should be one of MORPC’s "Top 10 Walks in Central Ohio." Submissions and more 

information is available at http://www.morpc.org/Sustainability/top-10-walks-in-central-ohio/index.   

 

Media Relations 

On July 22, 2015, MORPC hosted a press conference to release the results of The Impacts of Trails 

Study at the Grange Insurance Audubon Center. Joining the MORPC team at the press conference 

were study partners Tim Moloney, Franklin County Metro Parks, and Tony Collins, Columbus 

Recreation and Parks. 

 

MORPC in the News 

July & August 

 Columbus Business First - Benefits justify spending on hiking and biking trails 

 This Week Community News – Dublin Villager - Bridge Park development set to move forward 

 This Week Community News – Rocky Fork Enterprise - City leaders look at firms to draft strategic 

plan 

 Columbus Dispatch - Commuters have it good 

 Newark Advocate - Etna interchange expansion plans moving forward 

 Columbus Business First - Dublin hires veteran Columbus official as planning director 

 Franklin Soil and Water Backyard Conservation Update -  Riverfest! On Tour       

 Perry County Tribune – Village to join regional planning commission 

 NBC4 – Smog alert issued for Wednesday 

 Columbus Dispatch - Smog alert issued for Wednesday 

 Columbus Dispatch – Columbus Answers: What is the longest, continuously running street in 

Columbus? 

 OSU Discovery Themes - Ohio State teams with MORPC to help Ohio manufacturers improve 

sustainability and profitability 

 This Week Community News – Northwest News - Projects aimed at improving traffic flow and 

safety 

 This Week Community News – City leaders look at firms to draft strategic plan 

 Columbus Dispatch - Report details use, economic impact of local trails 

mailto:eleuby@morpc.org
mailto:mwalsh@morpc.org
http://www.morpc.org/Sustainability/top-10-walks-in-central-ohio/index


14 
 

 UrbanCincy - Stars Aligning for Cincinnati to Chicago High-Speed Rail   

 Columbus Dispatch – Study: Columbus area has a suburban feel 

 Columbus Dispatch – Traffic lights to come down in University District 

 This Week Community News – Upper Arlington News - Zoning changes eyed to prepare for 

expected growth 

 Dispatch Times - Atlanta drivers waste 52 hours in traffic a year 

 This Week Community News – Hilliard Northwest News - City Council approves Pointe legislation 

as emergency action 

 Columbus Dispatch - Red-light-camera debate focused on money 

 Columbus Dispatch - Scioto River park Downtown on track for late-fall finish 

 Chillicothe Gazette - Service Center, regional planning on county agenda 

 Columbus Dispatch – Columbus drivers spent 41 hours last year stuck in traffic 

 This Week Community News – Booster - Mayor's energy challenge falls far short of goal 

 Columbus CEO – Briefing: Panel discusses lack of downtown residents/retailers 

 Columbus Underground - Commuters Have Doubled in Columbus in Past 25 Years 

 

Press Releases distributed 

 Air Quality Alert Issued for July 29 in Central Ohio 

 MORPC updates Transportation Public Involvement Plan to include FTAs Section 5307 Program 

of Projects  

 MORPC Announces Results on the Impacts of Trails study for Central Ohio 

 MORPC Releases Top 40 High Crash Intersections 

 Summit Workshops Feature Central Ohio’s Energy Future 

 Will Central Ohio have Clean and Secure Water in the Future? 

 Approximately $26 Million Available for Franklin County in State Capital Improvements and Local 

Transportation Improvements Funds  

 $3.1 Million of Clean Ohio Conservation Funds Available for Franklin County 

 MORPC adopts Functional Classifications for Area Roadways 

 MORPC Seeks Comments on TRAC Projects 

 

Website Activity 

 MORPC’s Facebook received approximately 90 new page likes during July and August, with 

3,234 page likes to date. This gain is consistent with the previous months.  

 MORPC had 120 Facebook posts during the two-month period. 

 People were most engaged with the MORPC Facebook page July 22-23, when we released the 

results of the Impact of Trails Study and posted articles from Business First and the Dispatch. 

These posts reached approximately 4,000 people and were shared nearly 30 times by other 

people. The most engagement in August was a reminder about the MTP webmap. 

 MORPC also has a Facebook ad promoting the Summit on Sustainability that has reached nearly 

20,000 people during the final days of August. 

 MORPC had nearly 60 tweets in July and 65 in August, with nearly 44,000 tweet impressions in 

total. 

 Our Twitter profile visits increased during the month of July but dropped during August. They are 

largely consistent from month to month and have been considerably higher since April. 

 We received about 90 new followers during the two-month period. Total Twitter followers now 

stand at 2,562. 

 Our top tweet was a picture from the opening of Rocky Fork Metro Park. 

 Instagram posts included such things as the Materials Working Group tour of Rumpke, the 

Impact of Trails press conference, the staff Independence Day picnic, Yay Bikes! Riding, 

Operation Lifesaver Train, North Side Fix Final Phase groundbreaking, Fam Jam and others. We 

have 275 followers. 



15 
 

 MORPC.org had more than 19,000 page views in both July and August, with 5,654 users in July 

and 6,723 in August. There were 7,090 sessions. New visitors increased from 69% in July to 

73% in August. 

 The MTP page had over 6,000 page views in July and over 5,000 in August, with between 1,500 

and 2,000 users and over 2,000 sessions each month—most of which were new visitors. 

 For August along, the MTP webmap had over 23,000 page views with nearly 6,000 users and 

9,500 sessions. 



 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

William Murdock 

Executive Director 

 

DATE: 

 

September 4, 2015 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 12-15: "ACCEPTING THE VILLAGE OF NEW 

LEXINGTON (PERRY COUNTY) AS A MEMBER OF THE MID-OHIO 

REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION (MORPC)" 

 
 

 

The Village of New Lexington passed a resolution to join the Mid-Ohio Regional 

Planning Commission (MORPC) effective October 1, 2015 and to accept the 

conditions of membership contained in MORPC’s Articles of Agreement. The attached 

resolution accepts the Village of New Lexington as a member of MORPC, which will 

help meet the desire of MORPC’s membership to continue to grow the organization 

for the benefit of a stronger Central Ohio region. 

   

Attachment:  Resolution 12-15 

 



RESOLUTION 12-15 

 

“ACCEPTING THE VILLAGE OF NEW LEXINGTON (PERRY COUNTY) AS A MEMBER OF THE MID-OHIO 

REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION (MORPC)” 

 

WHEREAS, the Village of New Lexington recognizes the need for collaborative, cooperative planning 

in order to ensure continued growth and prosperity; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC’s mission is to be the regional voice and a catalyst for sustainability and econom-

ic prosperity in order to secure a competitive advantage for Central Ohio; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Village of New Lexington has petitioned for membership in MORPC; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of MORPC’s members to continue to grow for the benefit of strong collabo-

ration on regional issues; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Village of New Lexington will be assessed $370 dues pro-rated for 3 months based 

on 2015 population estimates; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Village of New Lexington passed a resolution accepting the conditions of membership 

contained in MORPC’s Articles of Agreement; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the Village of New Lexington is accepted as a member of the Mid-Ohio Regional 

Planning Commission effective October 1, 2015. 

 

Section 2. That the Bylaws provide that one (1) representative for the Village of New Lexington 

is eligible to serve as a voting member at the MORPC Commission meetings. 

 

Section 3. That the Village of New Lexington shall be entitled to the same regular services of 

MORPC as other members and that any special services will be purchased by the Vil-

lage based on standard MORPC rates.   

 

Section 4. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall 

deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 5.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 
 

 

                                                                                

Matt Greeson, Acting Chair 

      MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

Effective date: October 1, 2015 

Submitted by: William Murdock, Executive Director 

Prepared by:  Eileen Leuby, Member Services Coordinator, Public & Government Affairs 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: September 10, 2015 



 

 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Laura Koprowski, Director 

Public & Government Affairs 

 

DATE: 

 

September 4, 2015 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 13-15: “SUPPORTING SUB. HB 176 THAT 

WILL CREATE THE GASEOUS FUEL VEHICLE CONVERSION 

PROGRAM" 
 
On Tuesday, July 21, 2015, the Regional Policy Roundtable unanimously voted that 
the Commission consider supporting Ohio sub. HB 176.  
 
Sub. HB 176 would create a financial incentive program for entities to purchase or 
convert their existing fleets to Alternative Fueled Vehicles (AFVs). These incentives, 
which are set to sunset after five years, are available for private businesses, 
consumers and public entities. The program will be administered by the Ohio 
Environmental Protection Agency, which will also create a tax credit for the purchase 
of conversion of AFVs in the amount of 50 percent of the cost of conversion or 
purchase price of the vehicles. In addition, sub. HB 176 includes a $16 million per 
year gaseous fuel vehicle conversion fund for nonprofit corporations, public 
transportation systems, school districts and public fleets who do not benefit from the 
tax incentives 
 
Last year, MORPC approved resolution 32-14 which was in support of HB 336, the 
130th General Assembly version of this current legislation. HB 336 passed the House 
on March 26, 2014 with a unanimous vote of 92-0. However, the legislation failed to 
pass out of the Senate Finance Committee.  
 
Sub. HB 176 passed the House Ways and Means Committee unanimously on June 
23, 2015.  However, since the legislation appropriates funds, the bill must be 
approved by the House Finance Committee, prior to a vote on the House floor.   
 
MORPC will advocate that this legislation be passed and signed into law. Sub. HB 
176 is in line with the 2015 Public Policy Agenda, addressing the deployment 
strategies of alternative fueled transportation vehicles. Also, by introducing a 
gaseous fuels tax, the bill will leverage more dollars to be allocated in the area of 
transportation and infrastructure. 
 
Attachment: Resolution 13-15 



RESOLUTION 13-15 

 

“SUPPORTING SUB. HB 176 THAT WILL CREATE THE GASEOUS FUEL VEHICLE CONVERSION 

PROGRAM” 

 

WHEREAS, sub. HB 176 creates financial incentives for businesses, consumers and public entities 

including the Gaseous Fuels Conversion Program for the purchase or conversion of Alternative 

Fueled Vehicles (AFVs); and  

 

WHEREAS, the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency will administer the program and create a tax 

credit for the purchase or conversion of AFV’s in the amount of 50 percent of the cost of conversion 

or purchase price of the vehicles; and  

 

WHEREAS, the program will award a $16,000,000 per year grant under the gaseous fuel vehicle 

conversion fund for nonprofit corporations, public transportation systems, school districts and public 

fleets who do not benefit from the tax incentives; and 

 

WHEREAS, the purchase or conversion of AFVs will decrease emissions, leading to better air quality 

for the region; and  

 

WHEREAS, sub. HB 176  introduces a provision to tax gaseous fuels, which are currently not taxed in 

Ohio, gradually over a 10 year period; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Regional Policy Roundtable recommended, at its July 21, 2015 meeting, that the 

Commission support sub. HB 176, which aligns with MORPC’s 2015 Public Policy Agenda by 

addressing the development of deployment strategies of alternative fueled transportation vehicles 

and seeking additional revenue for transportation and infrastructure; now therefore  

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION:  

 

Section 1. That the Commission supports sub. HB 176 which deploys a strategy for alternative 

fueled transportation vehicles and provides additional revenue for transportation and 

infrastructure.  

 

Section 2.  The Commission will send a copy of this resolution to members of the Ohio Senate 

and encourage MORPC staff and members to express support for this legislation.  

 

Section 3.  That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall 

deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution.  

 

Section 4.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission.  

 
 

                                                                                

Matt Greeson, Acting Chair 

      MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 



Resolution 13-15 

Page 2 

 
Effective date: September 10, 2015 

Submitted by: Laura Koprowski, Public & Government Affairs Director 

Prepared by:  Joe Garrity, Public Affairs Coordinator 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: September 10, 2015 

 

 

 

 



Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 

Transportation Policy Committee 

Meeting Minutes 

 

 

Thursday, July 9, 2015 

2:18 p.m. 
Transportation Policy Committee Members 

Karen Angelou 

Herb Asher 

Pat Blayney 

Randy Bowman 

Susan Brobst 

Marilyn Brown 

Ron Bullard 

Greg Butcher 

Steve Campbell 

Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher 

Derrick Clay 

Ben Collins 

Mike Compton 

Karl Craven 

Tracie Davies 

Michael Dorman 

Michael Ebert 

Steve Gladman 

Matt Greeson 

Marian Harris 

Dan Havener 

Tom Homan 

Matt Huffman 

Pamela Hykes O’Grady 

Jenna Jackson 

Erik Janas 

Anthony Jones 

Steve Kennedy 

Ben Kessler 

Benjamin King 

Bill LaFayette 

Greg Lestini 

Barb Lewis 

Brian Lorenz 

Mike Maleski 

Glenn Marzluf 

Dana McDaniel 

Rory McGuiness 

Gary Merrell 

Bonnie Michael 

Erin Miller 

Robert Myers 

Victor Paini 

Eileen Paley 

Vince Papsidero 

David Paul 

Eric Phillips 

Rob Platte 

Bryan Rhoads 

Tory Richardson 

Dean Ringle 

Michael Schadek 

Elissa Schneider 

Ashley Senn 

David Simmons 

Thom Slack 

Ike Stage 

Joe Stefanov 

Curtis Stitt 

Scott Tourville 

Bill Vance 

Nancy White

 

Commission Members 

Franklin Christman 

Terry Emery 

Jim Lenner 

Christopher Manegold 

Eric Richter 

Steve Stolte 

 

Associate Members 

Jennifer Fish Nikki Scarpitti  

 

Staff 

Rachel Beeman 

Jacob Boehk 

Bernice Cage 

Kerstin Carr 

Mark Crosten 

Daniel Eisenberg 

Cynthia Etu 

Mary Ann Frantz 

Joe Garrity 

Nick Gill 

Shawn Hufstedler 

Ciel Klein 

Laura Koprowski 

Eileen Leuby 

William Murdock 

Deborah Murphy 

Christina O’Keeffe 

Rob Powell 

Nancy Reger 

Shari Saunders 

Maria Schaper 

Bevan Schneck 

Sandy Sechang 

Thea Walsh 

Brandi Whetstone 

 

Guests 

Conner Downard, Violet Township 

Jeremy Druhot, Delaware County 

Cornell Robertson, FCEO 

Christopher Sandine, City of Reynoldsburg 

Steve Sheperd, ODOT District 6 

Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill & Ritter 

 



Transportation Policy Committee Meeting Minutes 

July 9, 2015 

Page 2 

 
Chair Eric Phillips called the Transportation Policy Committee Meeting to order at 2:18 p.m. 

 

Metropolitan Planning Organization Report  

 Transportation Systems & Funding – Thea Walsh, Director 

Thea Walsh reported that four Transportation Review and Advisory Council (TRAC) applications were 

submitted through ODOT District 6 for our MPO planning area: 

o I-70 East at Brice and I-270, $75 million for construction 

o I-70 East at Brice and I-270, $7 million for detail design   

o I-70/I-71, Downtown, $12 million for construction of overhead bridges 

o I-270 South Outerbelt, $10 million for construction  

 

Ms. Walsh gave an overview on the 2015 Transportation Public Involvement Plan Update. There is a 

45-day comment period. The plan will be presented for adoption at the September 2015 

Transportation Policy Committee meeting. 

 

 Planning & Environment – Kerstin Carr, Director 

Kerstin Carr gave an update on the Systematic Safety Improvement pilot project. The project consists 

of two phases with both phases targeting crash types that tend to result in severe injuries and 

fatalities. Phase one targeted angle and fixed object crashes, phase two targets pedestrian crashes. 

Phase one is almost complete. Input is currently sought by MORPC members on which locations 

should receive treatments to improve pedestrian safety. 

 

Consent Agenda 

A motion was made and seconded to approve the Consent Agenda; motion passed. 

 

Metropolitan Transportation Plan Candidate Projects and Update – Thea Walsh, MORPC Transportation 

Systems & Funding Director; Nancy Reger, MORPC Regional Data & Mapping Director 

Thea Walsh presented the Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) Status Update & Strategies Development 

sharing where we are in the process and plan components. The most money is spent maintaining the system.   

 

Nancy Reger gave a demonstration of the MTP Candidate Projects interactive map. Ms. Reger thanked 

MORPC Team Members Daniel Eisenberg and Rob Powell for their efforts in creating and maintaining the 

map. The map gives the opportunity to comment on proposed projects; suggest a new project; share thoughts 

through social media; or email comments to MORPC. Over 200 drawings and 200 comments have been 

posted to date. Ms. Reger encouraged members and communities to use the map. 

 

The Transportation Policy Committee Meeting adjourned at 2:30 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Rory McGuiness, Secretary 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission  

http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/2015PIPUpdate.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/2015SystemSafety.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/2015JulyMTPUpdate.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/transportation/metropolitan-transportation-plan/2016-2040-plan/index


 
 1 

RESOLUTION T-16-15 

 

ADOPTING THE 2015 TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT PLAN 

 

WHEREAS, the Transportation Policy Committee of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission is 

designated as the metropolitan planning organization (MPO) by the governor, acting through the Ohio 

Department of Transportation (ODOT) and in cooperation with locally elected officials for Delaware 

and Franklin counties, Bloom and Violet townships in Fairfield County, New Albany, Pataskala and 

Etna Township in Licking County and Jerome Township in Union County; and 

 

WHEREAS, Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century (MAP-21) and the most recent federal 

metropolitan planning regulations require the MPO to engage in a proactive process that provides 

the public with complete information, timely notice, full access to key decisions, and supports early 

and continuing involvement while developing plans, such as the Metropolitan Transportation Plan, 

and programs, such as the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Transportation Public Involvement Plan (PIP), which was first prepared and endorsed 

in January 1995, outlines a continuous process that utilizes MORPC’s Transportation and 

Community Advisory Committees, special project committees, and general outreach and information 

dissemination; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Transportation PIP was amended in June 2000 to include the Central Ohio Transit 

Authority’s (COTA’s) planning and development of its program of transit projects; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Transportation PIP was amended in June 2005 to incorporate revisions to the 

Community Advisory Committee (CAC) bylaws, requirements of the new Americans with Disabilities 

(ADA) laws, and MORPC’s Title VI complaint process, among other changes; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Transportation PIP was amended in 2013 to incorporate the planning and 

development of Delaware Area Transit Agency (DataBus) program of transit projects, the 

Consultation process to involve local governments and other stakeholders, and updates to the 

approach to outreach and use of social media; and 

 

WHEREAS, the 2015 Transportation PIP is being amended to include Federal Transit 

Administration’s (FTA’s) Section 5307 annual Program of Projects in the public involvement process. 

The 2015 Transportation PIP was prepared and made available to the public for a 45-day review and 

comment period through public libraries, MORPC’s web site, and upon request with a notice of 

availability for review and comments having been sent to public agencies, neighborhood groups, civic 

associations, chambers of commerce, and representatives of those traditionally underserved by 

existing transportation systems; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Community Advisory Committee (CAC) at its August 31, 2015 meeting, and the 

Transportation Advisory Committee (TAC) at its September 2, 2015 meeting, recommended this 

action by the Transportation Policy Committee; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That it adopts the 2015 Transportation Public Involvement Plan dated September, 

2015. 



 
 2 

 

Resolution T-16-15 

Page 2 

 

Section 2. That it directs staff to implement, monitor and recommend updates to the Plan as 

needed. 

 

Section 3. That it directs staff to transmit this resolution to ODOT, COTA, DataBus and FTA. 

 

Section 4. That this committee finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions of 

this committee concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were taken 

in open meetings of this committee. 

 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Matt Greeson, Acting Chair 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 

 

________________________ 

Date 

 

Prepared by: Bernice Cage 

Public Information & Diversity Officer 

 

Attachment: 2015 Transportation Public Involvement Plan 

  



 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

2015 

TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT 

PLAN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SEPTEMBER 2015 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 
 

BACKGROUND .................................................................................................................. 1 

MORPC AS THE MPO ....................................................................................................... 1 
INTENT OF THE TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT PLAN............................ 2 

TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT PLAN ....................................................... 3 

Tier 1: MPO’s Committee Structure.................................................................. 3 
Tier 2: Project-Specific Public Involvement ..................................................... 5 

Tier 3: Public Outreach/Information Dissemination...................................... 6 

CONSULTATION ................................................................................................................ 7 
METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION PLAN PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT PROCEDURES.7 

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (TIP) PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT 

PROCEDURES ................................................................................................................... 8 

ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE.............................................................................................. 9 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT .........................................................................10 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION NONDISCRIMINATION COMPLAINT 

PROCEDURES FOR PROGRAMS OR ACTIVITIES OF MORPC ...................................10 



 
 

TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC 

INVOLVEMENT PLAN 2015 

1 

 

 

 
 
 
 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

The Public Involvement Plan specifies the procedures that the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning 

Commission will use when conducting its transportation planning process. The Plan also 

includes a section on Environmental Justice, the Americans with Disabilities Act and 

MORPC’s Nondiscrimination Complaint Procedures. 
 

 

BACKGROUND 
 

 
The Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) is a voluntary association 

of local governments in Central Ohio.  Franklin County and nearby counties as 

well as their cities, villages and townships are eligible for membership.  Elected 

and appointed officials sit on the Commission, which is the policy-making body of 

the organization. 

 
As a regional planning commission, MORPC has the flexibility and capability to be 

responsive to its members' needs.  MORPC assists with planning and 

implementing programs in areas of energy conservation, infrastructure, 

transportation, land use, economic prosperity, environmental protection and 

others. 

 
MORPC serves as a forum for state and local governments on regional issues and 

helps represent local communities' interests and needs at the state and federal 

levels. MORPC recognizes and encourages public and private cooperation on a 

regional basis and works to build consensus, sound planning practices and 

realistic decision making for the future. Because of MORPC’s role in the region, 

MORPC’s Transportation Policy Committee was originally designated the 

Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for the Columbus urbanized area in 

1964 and re-designated in 1973. 
 

 
MORPC AS THE MPO 

 

 
 

As the MPO, MORPC’s Transportation Policy Committee conducts the federally 

required 3C (continuous, cooperative and comprehensive) transportation planning 

process.  This process results in plans and programs that consider all 

transportation modes and supports the goals of the metropolitan transportation 

plan.  It is the basis for the development of the 20-year Metropolitan 

Transportation Plan and the 4-year Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). 

The plans and programs lead to the development and operation of the region’s 

integrated, multimodal transportation system that facilitates the efficient and 

economic movement of people and goods. 

 
Public involvement provides a deliberative and transparent process for people 

affected by the projects, strategies and initiatives recommended from the 

transportation planning process.  “People” as defined here include the general 



 
 

TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC 

INVOLVEMENT PLAN 2015 

2 

 

 

 

 

public as well as major stakeholders, special interest groups, those traditionally 

underserved by transportation, minorities, people with disabilities, freight 

shippers, providers of freight transportation services, and neighborhood and civic 

associations.  Input from all of these groups creates a more inclusive process in 

shaping the development of the metropolitan transportation plan and the TIP. 
 

 
The public involvement process encourages early and continuous involvement 

that not only helps to develop plans that accommodate the needs of the traveling 

public but also the efficient movement of goods. Public involvement is also 

required by the Metropolitan Planning Regulations of the United States 

Department of Transportation 23 CFR 450.316, 49 U.S.C. 5307(b)(1-7) and FTA 

Circular 9030.1E.  This Public Involvement Plan (PIP) is the process by which 

public involvement activities are conducted by MORPC’s Public & Government 

Affairs Department. 

 
The transportation planning process is complex and due to its complexity, the 

general public is encouraged to view the website, solicit presentations, and attend 

meetings and other public forums to gain an understanding of the process and 

plans. The meetings are designed not only to educate and inform the public but 

also to allow the public the opportunity to provide input into the various elements 

of the planning and decision-making process. 
 
 

INTENT OF THE TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT PLAN 
 

 
 

The PIP is designed to provide the public reasonable opportunity to participate in, 

review, and comment on the formulation of transportation policies, plans, and 

programs. This process provides a set of procedures to be consistently and 

comprehensively applied to incorporate the public’s involvement in the 

transportation planning process including the planning and development of the 

Central Ohio Transit Authority’s (COTA’s) and Delaware Area Transit Agency’s 

(DATABus’s) programs and projects. The PIP further serves to satisfy the public 

involvement requirements for Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5307 

Urbanized Area Formula Program grant funding received by both COTA and 

DATABus. 

 
It is the intent of the MPO to utilize this process in a proactive manner to solicit 

input from a broad representation of the community.  The MPO will secure data and 

consult with resource agencies, social service agencies, environmental groups and 

associations, state, county and local governmental agencies, townships, and other 

non-governmental agencies. The MPO actively seeks the views of the minority, 

people with disabilities, low-income and other populations traditionally underserved 

by transportation to ensure that a broad representation is obtained. 



 
 

TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC 

INVOLVEMENT PLAN 2015 

3 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

The overall process is based upon the following goals: 

 
 Provide timely information about planning issues and processes to the public. 

 Foster transparency by providing reasonable public access to technical and policy 

information used in the development of transportation plans. 

 Provide adequate notice of public involvement and planning activities. 
 Continually seek specific ways to engage and consider the needs of all segments 

of the population. 

 Obtain early and continuous public involvement in the transportation planning 

process. 

 
The PIP is reviewed periodically by the Ohio Department of Transportation, the 

Federal Highway Administration and the Federal Transit Administration to ensure that 

full and open access is provided by the MPO, COTA and DATABus in the decision- 

making process. The Public Involvement Plan outlined in the following section 

enhances the opportunity for public input and satisfies federal requirements for 

public participation. 
 

 

TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT PLAN 
 

 

The transportation planning area for the MPO includes Delaware and Franklin 

counties, Bloom and Violet townships in Fairfield County, New Albany, Pataskala and 

Etna Township in Licking County, and Jerome Township in Union County.  The MPO 

boundaries of the planning area are updated every 10 years based on the results of 

the national census.  There are currently no Tribal lands or federal public lands 

identified in the MPO planning area. 

 
MORPC uses a three-tier process to solicit input in the development of transportation 

plans, programs and policies. This process includes a structured MPO committee 

process, a project-specific process and a public outreach/information dissemination 

effort tailored to meet specific needs. 
 

 
 
 

Tier 1: MPO’s Committee Structure 
 

 
 

The MPO’s existing public involvement structure incorporates the activities of 

three transportation committees: the Transportation Policy Committee, the 

Transportation Advisory Committee (TAC) and the Community Advisory Committee 

(CAC). 



TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC 
INVOLVEMENT PLAN 2015 

4 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Transportation 

Policy Committee 
 
 
 
 

Transportation 
Advisory Committee 

(TAC) 
MPO Staff

 

Community Advisory 
Committee 

(CAC) 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Transportation Policy Committee - The Policy Committee is the MPO.  It is responsible 

for the review and adoption of all MPO planning work products such as the PIP, the 

Planning Work Program (PWP), the 20-year Metropolitan Transportation Plan, the 4- 

year TIP, area studies, corridor plans, amendments to adopted plans and programs 

and COTA’s and DATABus’s programs and projects, and Section 5307 Urbanized Area 

Formula annual Program of Projects.  This committee, upon recommendations from 

TAC and CAC, makes decisions on transportation policy. 

 
The Policy Committee includes the representation of local elected officials, officials of 

agencies that administer or operate major modes or systems of transportation, 

appropriate state officials, and chair of the CAC. 

 
Transportation Advisory Committee (TAC) – TAC provides technical advice, assistance, 

and recommendations to the Policy Committee and MPO staff.  TAC reviews the 

procedures for and results of the various phases of the transportation planning 

process and special studies, methodology, projections, assumptions, and 

recommended plans, programs, strategies and solutions before submission to the 

Policy Committee. 

 
TAC’s membership represents state, local, and federal transportation agencies, public 

utilities, public and private transportation providers, environmental and freight 

interests, and consultants. 
 

 
The Community Advisory Committee (CAC) – The CAC provides recommendations to 

the Policy Committee from a citizen, special interest and community perspective.  The 

CAC is one method by which the public can review and participate in all current 

transportation planning efforts, projects and issues. 



TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC 
INVOLVEMENT PLAN 2015 

5 

 

 

 
  

 
The CAC membership, as defined by its bylaws, is a broad representation of the 

community including, but not limited to, low-income and minority households, special 

interest groups, neighborhood and area commissions and those traditionally 

underserved by transportation. 

 
By having a membership which usually serves for several years, the CAC becomes 

educated about the often complicated transportation issues, constraints, and 

processes and their relationship to other conditions in the community. For more 

information see the CAC Bylaws (Appendix A). 
 

 
Tier 2: Project-Specific Public Involvement 

 

 
Participation in specific studies occurs through the formation of committees or the 

utilization of standing committees. The committee’s structure is reviewed to 

ensure that the appropriate segments of the population and specific special 

interests are represented and encouraged to participate.  The committee members 

assist by addressing study issues through reviewing and providing feedback on 

information presented, answering questions at public meetings and by providing 

information to local constituents. 

 
Agencies that undertake area studies and corridor plans, where there is a specific 

need of intensive study to determine potential transportation needs and impacts 

and which will be formally adopted by the MPO follow this process.  Persons who 

may be impacted directly by the study results are involved through the following 

process: 

 
 Advisory groups may be established for the study or standing committees that 

include the representation of specific target groups. Representatives from 

appropriate neighborhood and area commissions, employers, resource 

agencies, businesses, special interests, and local, state and federal 

transportation agencies are invited to participate. The advisory group meetings 

are held in venues convenient to the study area. 

 
 Public meetings are scheduled in the study area.  Invitations to attend the 

meetings are placed on the Agency website and Facebook, placed in electronic 

newsletters, and distributed by direct and electronic mail to neighborhood and 

civic associations, employers, businesses, resource agencies, media and local 

communities in the study and transportation planning area. 

 
Interim and final results of these studies are presented to the advisory groups, CAC, 

TAC, Transportation Policy Committee and other interested groups and 

communities.  Short, written reports on progress may also be provided. 

 
Information on the study milestones may be displayed in a newsletter and 

distributed to the media, general public, and public libraries, placed on a website 

and on social media.  A website specifically for the study may be developed. 



6 

TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC 
INVOLVEMENT PLAN 2015 

 

 

 
  

 
 

If this is the case, all written documents and presentations will include the web 

address of the study. 

 
All study plans, draft and final versions, are available for public review and 

comment at area libraries, the performing agency, and on the website. Upon 

request, MPO work products and documents are made available in alternative 

formats. 

 
Tier 3: Public Outreach/Information Dissemination 

 

 
 

MORPC involves the public in the transportation planning process through an array 

of outreach methods. Public meetings, one-on-one contacts, social media, 

presentations and the website are used to engage the public in the planning 

process.  Upon request, MPO work products and documents are made available in 

alternative formats. 

 
Public Outreach 

 
The public outreach program for the Metropolitan Transportation Plan, the TIP, 

COTA, DATABus and FTA Section 5307 Program of Projects includes the following: 

 
Legal notices are placed, as required by 23 CR Part 450.316, in local newspapers 

(with the largest circulation for each county and minority newspapers) prior to 

public review periods for the Metropolitan Transportation Plan, the TIP and all 

public hearings. MORPC’s Calendar of Events is updated and press releases are 

distributed to the media announcing the availability of draft and final major 

reports, public review periods, public meetings and other transportation planning 

efforts. 

 
Posting of information on all transportation programs and projects including links 

to significant projects located within the transportation planning area that are not 

conducted by MORPC can be found at  www.morpc.org.  Public comments can be 

submitted on the website, by electronic mail or sent through U.S. mail. 

 
Announcements to review draft reports and attend public meetings are sent to 

neighborhood and civic associations, local communities, special interest groups, 

businesses and resource agencies by direct and electronic mail, placed on social 

media and included in electronic newsletters. 

 
MORPC’s periodic publications that provide information pertaining to various 

transportation activities include an electronic newsletter, Regional eSource and 

the agency print newsletter, MORPConnection. 

 
Copies of all drafts and final reports are distributed to the metropolitan libraries 

and state library in the transportation planning area, and are placed on the 

website at www.morpc.org/transportation. 

http://www.morpc.org/
http://www.morpc.org/transportation


7 

TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC 
INVOLVEMENT PLAN 2015 

 

 

 
  

 
 
 

CONSULTATION 
 

 
As the MPO, MORPC conducts a transportation planning process that is continuous, 

cooperative and comprehensive with a 20-year horizon. This process results in plans 

and programs that consider all transportation modes and supports the goals in the 

metropolitan transportation plan. During this process, MORPC as the MPO will consult 

agencies and officials responsible for other planning activities within the metropolitan 

planning area that are affected by transportation (state and local planned growth 

agencies, airport operations, freight movements, safety agencies, active transportation 

groups, non-profit organizations, environmental protection groups, economic 

development agencies) and provide for the design and delivery of transportation 

services. 

 
The consulting agencies will provide input and comments to MORPC, the Ohio 

Department of Transportation, COTA and DATABus (current plans, studies, data, and 

analysis) on the various components of the transportation planning process. The input 

will be considered and provided to the public for review and comment during each of 

the milestones: 

 
 Evaluating the current transportation system and future needs 

 Identifying performance measures and implementation strategies addressing 

deficiencies in the transportation system 

 Identifying a fiscally balanced financial plan that can be expected for 

implementation 

 Announcement of strategies, solutions and projects 
 

 
 

METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION PLAN PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT 

PROCEDURES 
 

The various components of the Metropolitan Transportation Plan are presented to 

the CAC, TAC and Transportation Policy committees for review and comment over 

the course of its development.  A notice of availability of the draft documents for 

review with a minimum 30-day comment period by the general public is distributed 

by social media, and by direct and electronic mail to neighborhood and civic 

associations, employers, resource agencies, media, and local communities.  A 

notice of availability and copies of draft documents are distributed to area libraries 

and placed on the website at 

http://www.morpc.org/transportation/overview/main.asp. 
 

The MPO hosts an open house 30 days prior to the adoption of the transportation 

plan.  A formal presentation is provided, the various components of the 

transportation plan are displayed and MPO staff is available to answer questions. 

Invitations to attend the open house are distributed by direct and electronic mail 

http://www.morpc.org/transportation/overview/main.asp


8 

TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC 
INVOLVEMENT PLAN 2015 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

and social media to CAC, TAC, Transportation Policy Committee members, 

neighborhood and civic associations, employers, resource agencies, social service 

agencies, media, and local communities in the transportation planning area.  A copy of 

the formal presentation is placed on the website. Upon request, MPO work products 

and documents are made available in alternative formats. 

 
All comments received are considered public comments, and therefore are subject to 

disclosure under Ohio’s Public Records Act.  All public comments received are reviewed 

for consideration and if found appropriate, are incorporated into the document.  All 

responses are included in the final adopted document in a separate appendix. Copies 

of the final adopted document are sent to metropolitan libraries and the state library in 

the transportation planning area. 

 
In order for transportation projects to be eligible for federal funding, they must be 

included in the Metropolitan Transportation Plan.  At times it may be necessary to 

amend the Metropolitan Transportation Plan. Amendments to the Metropolitan 

Transportation Plan will be made available to the public for a 30-day comment period 

prior to approval. The amendment is brought before the CAC, TAC and Policy 

Committees for approval. The amendment and the revised Metropolitan 

Transportation Plan including the revised project listing, map and other amendment 

changes will be placed on the website. 

 

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (TIP) PUBLIC 

INVOLVEMENT PROCEDURES 
 

Prior to the development of the draft TIP, a legal notice is placed in the major local and 

minority newspapers announcing the update.  The notice will satisfy requirements for 

public participation in the development of FTA Section 5307 Program of Projects. A 

notice announcing the availability of the draft TIP for review with a minimum 30-day 

comment period is sent to CAC, TAC, Transportation Policy Committee members, 

neighborhood and civic associations, employers, resource agencies, media, and local 

communities in the transportation planning area.  The notice distributed by direct and 

electronic mail and social media announces the comment period and states where a 

copy of the document can be obtained or viewed. The draft document is distributed to 

the metropolitan libraries and the state library in the planning area and placed on the 

website at 

http://www.morpc.org/transportation/overview/transportation_improvement.asp. 

 
MORPC hosts an open house 30 days prior to the adoption of the TIP.  Elements of the 

TIP, including FTA Section 5307 Program of Projects, are displayed and a presentation 

is conducted on the information. The presentation is placed on the website. MPO staff 

is available to answer questions. Invitations to attend the open house are distributed 

by electronic and direct mail, and social media to CAC, TAC, Policy Committee 

members, neighborhood and civic associations, employers, resource agencies, media, 

and local communities in the transportation planning area. Upon request, MPO work 

products and documents are made available in alternative formats. 

http://www.morpc.org/transportation/overview/transportation_improvement.asp


TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC 
INVOLVEMENT PLAN 2015 

9 

 

 

 
  

Comments are received electronically, by U.S. mail, or submitted in writing at public 

meetings.  MORPC will accommodate the needs of any public in submitting 

comments. All public comments received are considered and responses are 

included in the final adopted document located in a separate appendix.  Copies of 

the final document are placed on the website and sent to the metropolitan libraries 

and the state library in the transportation planning area. 

 
Periodically amendments to the TIP are needed because the schedule, scope or 

funding of a transportation project needs to be revised or a new project added to the 

TIP.  Notice of the amendment will also satisfy the public participation requirements 

for FTA Section 5307 annual Program of Projects. The amendment is brought before 

the CAC, TAC and Transportation Policy Committees for approval.  Notification of a 

TIP amendment will be included on the committees’ agendas. Significant 

amendments are made available to the public for a 30-day comment period prior to 

approval.  All amendments to the TIP are placed on the website. 
 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE 
 

Recognizing that the impacts of federal programs and activities may raise questions of 

fairness to affected groups, President Clinton, on February 11, 1994, signed Executive 

Order 12898: Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations 

and Low-Income Populations. The needs of those traditionally underserved by the 

existing transportation system are sought and considered by the MPO. The following 

actions are meant to reduce the barriers for participation in the decision-making process 

by low-income and/or minority residents, elderly, or people with disabilities. 

 
Post card notices are mailed informing the underserved populations of opportunities to 

participate, major milestones, and public meetings. When possible, public meetings are 

held in locations that are located along a transit bus route, convenient to low-income 

populations and accessible to people with disabilities.  Such locations include public 

libraries, schools, community centers, and churches.  Agencies and organizations that 

represent these populations are included in mailings. 

 
Upon request, MPO work products and documents are made available in alternative 

formats. 



TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC 
INVOLVEMENT PLAN 2015 

10 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 
 

 
The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA)  http://www.ada.gov/pubs/ada.htm is 

a civil rights statute that prohibits discrimination against people with disabilities in all 

aspects of life.  ADA therefore calls for federally assisted programs to be accessible to 

people with disabilities.  People with disabilities are encouraged to participate through 

MORPC’s CAC and to get involved in the development and improvement of 

transportation and paratransit plans and services. All public meetings conducted by the 

MPO take place at locations that have accessible facilities so as to accommodate 

people with mobility limitations. 

 
MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION NONDISCRIMINATION 

COMPLAINT PROCEDURES FOR PROGRAMS OR ACTIVITIES OF 

MORPC 
 

MORPC does not discriminate on the basis of age, race, color, national origin, gender, 

sexual orientation, familial status, religion or disability in programs, services or in 

employment. Information on non-discrimination and related MORPC policies and 

procedures is available at www.morpc.org.  The information is also publically displayed 

in all MORPC conference rooms, lobby and lounge areas. Nondiscrimination procedures 

cover all external complaints regarding MORPC programs and activities filed under Title 

VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 or 49 CFR 21 and are available at: 

www.morpc.org/about-morpc/overview/policies/title-vi, “Nondiscrimination in the 

Federally Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation.” Information on how 

to file a complaint can be viewed on MORPC’s website at 

www.morpc.org/about-morpc/overview/policies/non-discrimination-complaints, or a 

hard copy may be requested by calling the Director of Human Resources at (614) 228- 

2663. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Rev June 2015 

http://www.ada.gov/pubs/ada.htm
http://www.morpc.org/
http://www.morpc.org/about-morpc/overview/policies/title-vi
http://www.morpc.org/about-morpc/overview/policies/non-discrimination-complaints


 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

111 Liberty Street, Suite 100 

Columbus, Ohio 43215 
 
 

T 614.228.2663 

TTY 614.228.2663 

www.morpc.org 

http://www.morpc.org/


 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Transportation Policy Committee  

FROM: 

 

Nick Gill, Assistant Director 

Transportation Systems & Funding 

 

DATE: 

 

September 4, 2015 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution T-17-15: “ESTABLISHING PRIORITIES FOR 

APPLICATIONS SUBMITTED TO THE OHIO STATEWIDE URBAN 

CMAQ COMMITTEE” 

  
Resolution T-17-15 is to identify the top four priorities for projects being submitted 

from MORPC for CMAQ funding to the Ohio Statewide Urban CMAQ Committee 

(OSUCC). This is in accordance with the statewide process and evaluation criteria as 

collectively established by the eight large MPOs. 

 

In 2012, ODOT directed the eight large MPOs in Ohio to establish one statewide 

process to manage and select projects to utilize the approximately $59 million 

annually that ODOT allocates collectively to those MPOs. Previously, each MPO was 

allocated funds individually. MORPC’s allocation was about $11 million per year. The 

eight large MPOs established the OSUCC, which includes representatives from the 

transportation departments of each of these MPOs. Throughout 2013, they worked 

to establish the procedures and evaluation criteria to select projects and manage the 

pooled funding. They completed this process at the end of 2013, and implemented it 

for the first time in 2014 committing CMAQ funds through 2020. It is now being 

implemented for the second time committing CMAQ funds through 2021. Following 

this, the process will occur biennially.  

 

MORPC staff incorporated the statewide process into its 2014 project solicitation 

process, which was adopted via Resolution T-3-14 in April 2014. In short, we did not 

create a separate process to solicit projects for statewide CMAQ funding. Our biennial 

solicitation and selection process establishes the projects toward which MORPC will 

commit its federal transportation funding (including its expected proportional share 

of CMAQ through the OSUCC process). Staff then determines which projects are 

CMAQ-eligible and completes the OSUCC summary sheet for each project, scores it 

per the statewide criteria, then submits it to the OSUCC. The OSUCC schedule 

requires that projects are to be submitted in mid-September. The OSUCC will then 

collectively review all of the applications and scoring and make its selection of 

projects to fund by December.  

 

 



 

 

Memo 

Resolution T-17-15 

August 26, 2015 

Page 2 

 

 

One aspect of the OSUCC evaluation criteria is a ranking of the top four projects 

submitted from each MPO. These projects ranked one through four receive points in 

the evaluation based on their rank. This resolution is to establish these priorities in 

order one through four. 

 

Staff reviewed the projects to which MORPC committed funding via Resolution T-3-15 

and identified five CMAQ-eligible projects to submit that are not currently fully funded 

using CMAQ funding. These are shown in the attachment to the resolution. All 

projects could receive funding through the OSUCC process, even though only four 

projects are ranked. The table also provides the staff ranking recommendations. 

 

Because the Attributable Funds Committee (AFC) is charged with making 

recommendations for projects to use MORPC-attributable funding, staff presented 

the staff recommendations to the AFC as well as the CAC and TAC. All three 

committees concurred with the staff recommendation as shown in the attachment 

to the resolution. 

 

NTG:RN:bsn 

 

Enclosure: Resolution T-17-15 

 



RESOLUTION T-17-15 

 

“ESTABLISHING PRIORITIES FOR APPLICATIONS SUBMITTED TO THE OHIO STATWIDE URBAN CMAQ 

COMMITTEE” 

 

WHEREAS, the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) provides allocations of Congestion 

Mitigation/Air Quality (CMAQ) federal transportation funding to Metropolitan Planning Organizations 

(MPOs) in air quality non-attainment and maintenance areas; and 

 

WHEREAS, ODOT directed the eight large Ohio MPOs to develop one process to manage and select 

projects to use the pooled set of funding allocated collectively to those eight areas; and 

 

WHEREAS, the eight large Ohio MPOs established the Ohio Statewide Urban CMAQ Committee 

(OSUCC) to develop and implement a process to manage and select projects to use CMAQ funds; and  

 

WHEREAS, the OSUCC completed development of the process in late 2013, implemented it for the 

first time in 2014, and is now implementing it for a second time; and  

 

WHEREAS, MORPC incorporated the change in the management of CMAQ funds into the MORPC 

Principles and Procedures for managing MORPC-attributable federal transportation funds in its 

update via Resolution T-3-14; and 

 

WHEREAS, applications from each MPO to the OSUCC for CMAQ funds are due in mid-September and 

an aspect of the OSUCC evaluation criteria included a ranking of the top four (ranked one through 

four) application priorities submitted by each MPO; and  

 

WHEREAS, MORPC staff has identified five CMAQ-eligible projects to submit to the OSUCC from the 

projects to which MORPC committed funding via Resolution T-3-15; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Attributable Funds Committee (AFC) is charged with making recommendations for 

projects to use MORPC-attributable federal transportation funding; and  

 

WHEREAS, MORPC staff has worked with the AFC to establish the top four priorities as provided in 

the attachment to this resolution; and 

 

WHEREAS, the additional projects as shown on the attachment are also being submitted to the 

OSUCC for CMAQ funding; and  

 

WHEREAS, all projects submitted to the OSUCC have already been approved for funding through 

MORPC’s regular project evaluation and selection process; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Community Advisory Committee at its meeting on August 31, 2015, and the 

Transportation Advisory Committee at its meeting on September 2, 2015, recommended approval of 

this resolution to the Transportation Policy Committee; now therefore 

 

 

  



Resolution T-17-15 

Page 2 

 

 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRANSPORTATION POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 

PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the top four priorities as shown in the attachment are submitted to the OSUCC 

for CMAQ funding. 

 

Section 2. That the additional project shown on the attachment is also being submitted to the 

OSUCC for CMAQ funding. 

 

Section 3. That the Transportation Policy Committee finds and determines that all formal 

deliberations and actions of this committee concerning and relating to the adoption 

of this resolution were taken in open meetings of this committee.  

 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Matt Greeson, Acting Chair 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

_________________________________________  

Date 

 

Prepared by: Transportation Staff 

 

Attachment: Projects Being Submitted to OSUCC for CMAQ funding 

  



 

Resolution T-17-15 Attachment: 

Projects being submitted to OSUCC for CMAQ Funding 

 

 

 

 

Staff 

Rank 
Project Title Jurisdiction 

Current CMAQ 

Commitment 

Additional 

Request 

Total Project 

Cost 

1 Columbus Traffic Signal System, Phase E Columbus $1,500,000 $9,985,344 $12,831,241 

2 COTA 2021 CNG Bus Replacement COTA $0 $3,299,200 $4,124,000 

4 Bexley Signal System Interconnect Bexley $0 $1,466,227 $1,643,227 

  New Albany Signal System Interconnect New Albany $0 $934,960 $1,615,570 

3 Whitehall Signal System Interconnect Whitehall $0 $1,288,161 $1,595,161 



 

 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 
Officers and Board Members 
Transportation Policy Committee 
Transportation Advisory Committee 
Community Advisory Committee 
 

FROM: 

 

Thea J. Walsh, Director of Transportation Systems & Funding 

DATE: 

 

September 4, 2015 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution T-18-15: "ACCEPTING THE PWP COMPLETION 

REPORT FOR STATE FISCAL YEAR 2015" 
 

Annually, MORPC is required to submit a report to the Ohio Department of 

Transportation (ODOT) describing the work completed with federal planning funds 

provided to continue the metropolitan transportation planning process, as defined by 

MAP-21.   

 

For State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2015, the use of these funds was outlined in the SFY 

2015 Planning Work Program (PWP) adopted by Resolution T-7-14. The PWP serves 

as the scope of work, the schedule, and the budget for the federally funded planning 

activities.   

 

The PWP included such activities as maintaining the TIP, continued delivery of 

projects using MORPC-attributable funds, continued development of the 2016-2040 

Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP), assistance on freeway and arterial studies 

such as the downtown, south outerbelt and Far East Freeway activities, support for 

safety and operations and management of the transportation system, and support 

for transit, bike and pedestrian planning. The SFY 2015 PWP also included the 

continuation of ridesharing/demand reduction and air quality awareness activities. 

As part of this scope of work MORPC also prepared the Public Involvement Plan, 

updated the MPO boundary as a result of the 2010 census, updated the functional 

classification system, distributed new bike maps, coordinated the JARC and New 

Freedom competitive selection process, conducted a Regional Data Site Task Force, 

insight2050 and many other projects and activities that have been presented to you 

over the state fiscal year.   

 

A summary of the PWP activities is included as an attachment to the resolution. A full 

report is available upon request.   

 

Resolution T-18-15 approves the completion report and requires that it is forwarded 

to ODOT.  

 

Attachment: Resolution T-18-15



   

RESOLUTION T-18-15 

 

“ACCEPTING THE PWP COMPLETION REPORT FOR STATE FISCAL YEAR 2015” 

 

WHEREAS, it is the role of the metropolitan planning organization (MPO) to help encourage, facilitate 

and provide a forum for regional, cooperative transportation planning and decision-making; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Work Program (PWP) is the document that outlines the work of the MPO, the 

use of regional transportation planning funds and the regional planning activities that will be done 

each state fiscal year; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Policy Committee adopted the SFY 2015 Planning Work Program (PWP) by Resolution 

T-7-14; and 

 

WHEREAS, the activities described in the PWP have been completed or carried over into SFY 2016 

and reported in the PWP Completion Report, a summary of which is attached; and 

 

WHEREAS, major products of the PWP have been presented previously; and 

 

WHEREAS, these products include the core work with the Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP), 

the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) and the continued delivery of projects using MORPC-

attributable funds, as well as the freeway and arterial studies, ‘major-new' projects, local traffic 

forecasting and continuing updates to the travel demand model, support for transit planning and 

ODOT planning studies, ITS, ridesharing/demand reduction, bike and pedestrian planning, safety 

planning and air quality awareness; and  

 

WHEREAS, ODOT requires approval of this PWP Completion Report by the Transportation Policy 

Committee as the Metropolitan Planning Organization; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Community Advisory Committee at its August 31, 2015 meeting, and the 

Transportation Advisory Committee, at its September 2, 2015 meeting recommended approval to 

the Transportation Policy Committee; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRANSPORTATION POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 

PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the Transportation Policy Committee approves the PWP Completion Report for 

SFY 2015. 

 

Section 2. That this resolution and the PWP Completion Report be forwarded to the Ohio 

Department of Transportation for appropriate action. 

 

Section 3. That the Transportation Policy Committee finds and determines that all formal 

deliberations and actions of the committee concerning and relating to the adoption 

of this resolution were taken in open meetings of this committee. 

 

 

       

Matt Greeson, Acting Chair 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

             

Date 

Prepared by: Transportation Staff 

Attachment: Summary of Completion Report for the SFY 2015 Planning Work Program 



SUMMARY

FISCAL YEAR 2015 PLANNING WORK PROGRAM-COMPLETION

I.  Formula Funded Planning Program Projects

WORK ELEMENT

FUNDING SUMMARY

REPORT SUMMARY

$3,336,918Total Budget

$11,003Balance Remaining for SFY 2016 or later is

60114-003 Safety Planning

see 60115-103$178,639Budget

$178,639Spent 6/30

60115-101 Active Transportation Planning

The Active Transportation Plan is nearing its completion; the regional network corridor 
analysis has been completed and work toward the creation of an interactive story map 
has begun. Both the September and May pedestrian and bicycle volunteer counts 
allowed for the counting of about 20 locations each. In addition, several community 
members borrowed MORPC's automated pedestrian and bicycle counters for their 
projects. 
A total of 13 webinars were offered to our members specific to Complete Streets and 
livability factors. More than 15 different transportation projects were reviewed to 
ensure Complete Streets elements were included.
In partnership with Columbus, ODOT, and YayBikes, a park & pedal program was 
launched during Bike to School month in May. The program encourages people to 
park their cars at parks nearby trails and commute downtown by bike.
Staff participated in and attended various conferences and events around active 
transportation planning, including participation in Columbus' ConnectColumbus 
initiative.
In May, the Sustainability Advisory Committee approved the creation of the Central 
Ohio Greenways (COG) board to focus on expanding use and facilities of the regional 
trail system.

$400,000 ^Budget

$416,920Spent 6/30

60115-103 Safety Planning

The 2011-2013 high crash location lists were completed and made available to 
MORPC's members and the public, in addition to the 2009-2013 region crash fact 
sheets.
MORPC was selected as the host agency of the 5th National Safe Routes to School 
conference to take place in Columbus, Ohio in April 2016. Work has begun to plan 
and organize the conference.
The Systematic Safety Improvement Program finished selection of Phase I location 
and countermeasures, focus on angle and fixed-object crashes. 
Three meetings were held with select member agencies to review MORPC's safety 
program and determine its scope for the coming years.
Staff continued to participate in the Traffic Records Coordinating, Strategic Highway 
Safety Plan, and Columbus Area Pedestrian Safety committees, as well as the 
Franklin County Fatality Review Board. Staff also participated and attended various 
safety conferences and trainings.

$135,000Budget

$127,092Spent 6/30



60115-302 Management & Operations Planning

Information on pavement and bridge condition information was analyzed to assist in 
the establishment of performance measures for the 2016-2040 Metropolitan 
Transportation Plan. The regional Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) group met 
four times. Work began to update the regional ITS architecture including meetings 
with the major stakeholders and two workshops with FHWA. Coordination continued 
with the Central Ohio Regional Logistics Council on freight-related activities. 
Assistance was provided in organizing the Ohio Freight conference. Staff 
spearheaded the formation of a statewide Freight Working Group through the Ohio 
Association of Regional Councils.

$200,000Budget

$188,374Spent 6/30

60115-304 Transit and Human Services Planning

Organized FTA Section 5307, 5309 and 5340 funding splits for the Columbus UZA 
after each apportionment for COTA and DATABus and submitted to FTA  .

Organized monthly COTA/DATABus/MORPC coordination meetings. Assisted COTA 
in publicizing its Transit System Redesign implementation. Also coordinated with 
COTA to publish COTA’s Service Change Public Meeting announcements and 
possible route change information.

$140,000Budget

$102,973Spent 6/30

60215-300 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) and Implementation

Several amendments to the FY 14-17 TIP requested by ODOT or local agencies were 
processed and approved. Federally funded projects were coordinated with local 
agencies, ODOT and the Ohio Public Works Commission. ODOT District staff 
scheduled quarterly meetings with local sponsoring agencies, their consultants, and 
MORPC staff. Monthly reports on the status of the MORPC-attributable projects were 
provided. MORPC, COTA and ODOT Transit met quarterly to stay on top of transit-
specific TIP issues.

The process to solicit and select projects to use MORPC-attributable federal funding 
was completed. Working cooperatively with USDOT, ODOT, local governments, 
transit authorities and the public, staff prepared a new TIP for FYs 2016-2019. Staff 
sought public comments on the draft TIP update through a public involvement 
process, including an open house event. A few comments were received and 
incorporated into the final TIP.

$237,000Budget

$259,919Spent 6/30

60515-201 Manage and Collect Transportation & Related Information

MORPC updates base GIS files from state, federal, and local sources on a quarterly 
or annual basis. GIS files are available for downloading from an FTP site by way of 
the MORPC website. Information available includes points of interest, development, 
street centerlines, bikeways, traffic analysis zones, community boundaries, and 
census data. We completed coding existing and future land uses to over 660,000 
parcels for areas in the MORPC travel demand model using the standard land use 
classification system that the land use allocation model uses.

$175,000Budget

$190,674Spent 6/30

60515-202 Perform Trend Analyses of Transportation Data

The 2015 State of the Region included a series of articles as an insert into the local 
business newspaper, Business First, which was published April 3, 2015. The insert 
included articles about development trends, demographic shifts, and general 
population growth.  

The 2015 MTP Report Card was published on MORPC’s website. This is the third 
report card published. This report card is updated annually and is an assessment of 
our accomplishments toward meeting the performance measures identified in the 
2015-2035 Metropolitan Transportation Plan. Between 2014 and 2015, the region has 
improved in the areas of reducing driving alone, communities adopting complete 
streets, bridge conditions and crash rates. The region remains on target to meet 
measures set for pavement conditions, congestion, compliance with Environmental 
Justice, and bikeway development.

Detailed projections were completed for years 2025, 2040 and 2050. This information 
is available on MORPC's website for downloading as spreadsheets, GIS files, or 
simply for viewing on an interactive website.

$175,000Budget

$168,883Spent 6/30

^ Project continues beyond SFY 2015



60515-203 Promote Data Sharing

MORPC created several interactive webmap in 2015. Basic maps for public viewing 
include the land use forecasts and the sidewalk inventory. We also developed a 
complex interactive map for the public and the transportation community to comment 
on existing candidate projects proposed to be included in the 2016-2040 MTP, or 
actually draw their own projects for consideration and evaluation. As of July, over 500 
suggestions were submitted.
MORPC hosted six monthly Regional Data Task Forces between February and July. 
The task force was comprised of representatives from a variety of disciplines including 
academia, transportation, local business, utilities, non-profits, and local governments. 
The group was charged with four tasks:
•	Answer the question – is there a need for a centralized data portal for Central Ohio 
•	What types of elements should be included on the site
•	How should the site be governed
•	What are some potential funding sources for building and maintaining the site
A white paper documenting the process and findings is being drafted now for review in 
October.

MORPC continues to monitor and maintain the Franklin County LBRS. Edits are being 
made to the master files by MORPC, Columbus, Westerville, Gahanna, Worthington, 
Grove City, Dublin, Franklin County Engineer and the Franklin County Auditor.

$225,000Budget

$214,990Spent 6/30

60515-204 Provide GIS, Mapping and Data Support for Transportation Projects and Progra

Land use projections were reviewed for specific transportation studies including SR 
161 east, US36/37/I-71, the City of Powell, Home Road and Easton.

Databases were modified and updated to support the TIP, and maps were prepared 
for the TIP Open House.

A new sidewalk inventory was completed and is available for viewing on MORPC's 
website as an interactive map.

GIS analysis was performed in association with the Active Transportation Plan.

$185,000Budget

$163,761Spent 6/30

60515-305 Transportation Systems Analysis Techniques and Applications

The regional travel demand model was maintained. In conjunction with the ODOT 3-C 
model update, work continued on refining networks and preparing other model inputs. 
Active participation continued in the 3-C model development process with ODOT, the 
consultant and the other MPOs. Staff began to work with ODOT and consultants on 
the FHWA SHRP2 Implementation Assistance Program (C10). This program will 
integrate DTA (Dynamic Traffic Assignment) into the new 3-C Model. 

Participation continued in the OSU/ODOT/COTA on-board transit survey through 
conference calls, email and phone call exchanges.  

Land Use Allocation Model was overhauled and applied to produce land use forecasts 
for the 2016-2040 MTP update.

$225,000Budget

$234,462Spent 6/30

61014-001 Long-Range Multimodal Transportation Planning

A small amount of funding was carried over from FY 14 to FY 15. See 61015-301 for 
Long-Range Multimodal Transportation Planning activities.

$528,566Budget

$528,566Spent 6/30

^ Project continues beyond SFY 2015



61015-002 Transportation Public Involvement

The Community Advisory Committee (CAC) met in July, September, October, 
November and December 2014 and January, March, April, May and June 2015. 
Informational items presented to CAC, TAC and Transportation Policy Committee 
included: 2014 Ozone Season Report, 2016-2019 TIP, 2016 Planning Work Program 
(PWP), 2016-2040 Columbus Area Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) Goals, 
Land Use, Evaluation Criteria, Measurable Objectives, Candidate Projects, Active 
Transportation, Bike-2-Work day, Central Ohio Greenways Board, Columbus to 
Chicago Rail, COTA's Fare Adjustment for 2015, COTA’s Transit System Review, 
COTA on NextGen, CMAX, Stand Up 4 Transportation and service changes, Crash 
Data,  Economic Impacts of Trails, insight2050, Land Use Projections, MORPC 
Attributable Funds, MORPC’s position on the proposed strengthening of the air quality 
standards, MTP report card, New  Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) 
Boundary, OPWC Infrastructure & Clean Ohio Programs, Population Estimates, 
RideSolutions, Section 5310, Share the Road Campaign, Sidewalk Inventory, SR 161 
Traffic Study, Sustaining Scioto project, TRAC Projects, and USDOT Certification 
Review. 

Resolutions were proposed and approved on the 2012-2035 Metropolitan 
Transportation Plan (MTP), SFY 2014-2017 Transportation Improvement Program 
(TIP), Support of the COTA’s Cleveland Avenue Bus Rapid Transit Proposal to FTA 
for § 5309 New Starts Funding, the SFY 2014 PWP Completion Report, Establishing 
Priorities for Applications Submitted to the Ohio Statewide Urban CMAQ Committee, 
Establishing Priorities for Central Ohio Candidate Projects Submitted in 2014 for 
TRAC Funding, Adopting Goals for the 2016-2040 Columbus Area MTP, Adopting the 
MPO Boundary of MORPC, Adopting Measurable Objectives for 2016 MTP, Adopting 
Projects to Use MORPC-Attributable Federal  Funding, Amending the SFY 2014 
PWP,  Adoption of Independent Regional Land Use Variables, Amending the MPO 
Boundary of MORPC, Adoption of Project Evaluation Criteria for 2016 MTP,  
Acceptance of the 2016 PWP,  Certification of MORPC Metropolitan Transportation 
Planning Process, Adoption and Amendment of the SFY 2016 TIP and Reaffirmation 
of the 2012-2035 MTP. 

All topics were announced in press releases, social media, the electronic newsletter 
Regional eSource and the printed newsletter, MORPC Connection.

Open houses were held on the SFY 2016 TIP and MORPC's Certification Review. The 
2016 MTP was featured in a special insert of Business First and in a video presented 
at the 2015 State of the Region luncheon.

$97,713Budget

$92,129Spent 6/30

61015-301 Long-Range Multimodal Transportation Planning

The progress made toward meeting the transportation goals and targets established 
in the 2012-2035 MTP was monitored and reported in the MTP Report Card. An 
amendment to the 2012-2035 MTP was completed. Goals, objectives, performance 
measures with targets, evaluation criteria and the 2040 land use projections for the 
2016-2040 MTP were adopted. Identification of candidate projects began, including 
development of an interactive web map for members and the public to suggest 
projects and comment on candidate projects. The MTP work is being coordinated with 
Columbus's Connect Columbus long-range planning activity and COTA's NextGen 
long-range planning activity.

Staff followed and participated in various ODOT planning activities, including progress 
on the innerbelt projects, the Far East Freeway Study, the South Outerbelt Study, the 
Active Traffic Demand Management Study, the US 42 Access Management Study 
and the scope development of the Delaware County Freight Study.

$210,000Budget

$246,593Spent 6/30

62525-100 Cross-Jurisdictional Planning Coordination

A total of 18 InfoShare meetings were held with MORPC members to learn about their 
projects, needs, and accomplishments. Regional Collaboration meetings took place 
twice a year with each of the four groups (Northeast, Northwest, Southeast, and 
Southwest) where neighboring jurisdictions would share any type of transportation 
project that would potentially affect a community nearby or that would be worthwhile 
collaboration.
In terms of member education, MORPC offered bi-monthly Regional Education 
Forums targeted around transportation and funding issues.

$120,000Budget

$103,345Spent 6/30

^ Project continues beyond SFY 2015



69515-300 Program Administration

Ten meetings of the MPO transportation committees (CAC, TAC & Policy) were 
conducted. The 2014 PWP completion report was prepared as well as the 2015 PWP 
and update to the biennial agreement with ODOT. The MPO boundary was revised 
and work began on updating MPO member agreements. The USDOT quadrennial 
certification process was completed.

$105,000Budget

$108,595Spent 6/30

^ Project continues beyond SFY 2015



II.  Special Projects

WORK ELEMENT

FUNDING SUMMARY

REPORT SUMMARY

$2,173,940Total Budget

$464,344Balance Remaining for SFY 2016 or later is

66501-000

80% MORPC STP

Economic Impact of Trails

The Economic Impact of Trails Study was completed by the end of June and included 
a final report with technical memoranda, an executive summary, and fact sheets. All 
of the information is available online at www.morpc.org/trailstudy. 
Among others, the study included a full count of trail users along the ten major 
Greenways trails, which set the baseline for future counts of this magnitude.

$100,000Budget

$60,000Spent 6/30

66502-000

100% ODOT Funded

Rural Transportation Planning Partnership

Assistance was provided to Buckeye Hills - Hocking Valley Regional Development 
District as it  continued its transportation planning activities as a result of ODOT's new 
rural transportation planning organization program. This included staff attendance at 
several meetings and specific input with regard to land use, safety analysis, traffic 
forecasting and report preparation as Buckeye Hills put together its transportation 
plan.

$250,000Budget

$113,567Spent 6/30

66551-000

80% MORPC STP

Regional Development III (insight2050 Phase IIA)

An infill directory of potential development sites is being built as part of the second 
phase of insight2050. Vacant land was identified from aerial photography using GIS. 
In addition,  properties expected to have more intense uses in the future when 
compared to their current use were marked for the draft directory. 

Another part of this phase is to develop standard development typologies for 
evaluating land use and transportation best practices. This process has been started 
using GIS analysis. Nodes, corridors, neighborhoods and downtowns are being 
classified into rural, suburban standard, suburban compact, and urban categories.

$330,000 ^Budget

$39,925Spent 6/30

66552-000 Freight Trends Study

The Central Ohio Freight Trends Study stalled because of personnel changes with the 
consultant and needing appropriate documentation from the consultant to process 
invoices. A termination agreement was reached with the consultant and a plan to 
complete the study internally was started.

$200,000 ^Budget

$123,050Spent 6/30

66562-000

80% MORPC STP

Supplemental Planning SFY13

1) See 60215-300 for activities related to the TIP and project expedition.
2) Traffic counts collected by various entities were processed into the MORPC online 
database system. The consultants collected counts in spring of 2015.
3) Work in this area included continued coordination associated with the LBRS 
communities. It also included development of interactive on-line maps that were 
developed to solicit input from local communities with regard to existing and future 
land use.
4) MORPC worked with Perry Township, Columbus and Worthington to complete a 
traffic study for the SR 161 corridor from Sawmill Road to SR 315. 
5) It was decided not to pursue the cost/benefit analysis for converting fleets to CNG.

$312,500Budget

$312,500Spent 6/30

^ Project continues beyond SFY 2015



66564-000

80% MORPC STP

Supplemental Planning SFY15

1) See 60215-300 for activities related to the TIP and project expedition.
2) Traffic counts collected by various entities were processed into the MORPC online 
database system. The consultants collected counts in spring of 2015.
3) Promotion of Data Sharing - MORPC pulled together a Regional Data Task Force 
from multiple disciplines including utilities, local government, transportation, economic 
development, health, community planners, and engineers to evaluate the need and 
high-level content for a Regional Data Site. The group discussed data gaps with 
regard to accessibility and analysis, and determined there is a need. They reviewed 
other regional sites and concluded elements that should be included on the site to be 
a catalogue, a way for pubic interaction, a place for the data community to share 
analysis results and a help desk to connect with experts. They also discussed a 
governance structure for setting policy and identified potential funding sources for 
building and maintaining the site. The Task Force met from February through July. A 
whitepaper summarizing the findings and outlining recommendations is currently 
being drafted and will be completed in October.
4) MORPC worked with Perry Township, Columbus and Worthington to complete a 
traffic study for the SR 161 corridor from Sawmill Road to SR 315. Work began on 
updating traffic forecasts for the City of Delaware to update its thoroughfare plan. 
Work began on providing traffic projects for the City of Columbus' Connect Columbus 
long-range planning activity.
5) See 60115-302 for activities related to ITS.

$312,500Budget

$312,499Spent 6/30

66565-000

80% MORPC STP

Regional Growth Impact Analysis (insight2050)

With input from the steering committee, the insight2050 report was completed in 
December and along with an executive summary is available at its own dedicated 
website: www.getinsight2050.org. The report lays out 4 different scenarios of how 
Central Ohio could develop over the next 30+ years and compares them to 8 metrics 
related to transportation, government budgets, and environment. 
Since the completion of the report, staff has presented the findings to over 30 different 
organizations and audiences.

$500,000Budget

$500,281Spent 6/30

67405-000

100% FTA MORPC 
Subgrantee of COTA

Ongoing Human Services Transportation Coordination --

MORPC updated the FTA Section 5310 program management plan (PMP) to 
administer the Section 5310 funds. FTA approved the PMP on February 12, 2015.

Funding request and other relevant information were made available to potential 
recipients by press release, direct e-mail and other measures. Requests were due to 
MORPC on March 18, 2015. An informational session was also held. 

Requests were evaluated and selected on March 23, 2015 for inclusion by 
administrative modification and resolution by MORPC’s CAC, TAC, and 
Transportation Policy Committee to MORPC’s 2014-2017 TIP and ODOT’s STIP for 
FTA approval. A Program of Projects was also completed.  

MORPC is evaluating and discussing the existing Coordinated Plans for Franklin and 
Delaware counties to be combined during the next update. 

Staff continues to advise MORPC committee meetings with updates to the Section 
5310 program as well as informing DATABus (Delaware Area Transit Agency) and 
COTA’s Mobility Advisory Board meetings. 

Selected Section 5310 projects were entered into TEAM for approval. 	
MORPC staff discussed with other departments how to process for purchasing, 
reporting and processing Section 5310 funds according to MORPC’s PMP.

$71,621Budget

$57,318Spent 6/30

67415-000

100% FTA 5310 Administration 
10% of Apportionment

5310 Designated Recipient

Not authorized to spend FTA 5310. Performed work under 67405.$97,319 ^Budget

$0Spent 6/30

^ Project continues beyond SFY 2015



III.  Ridesharing and Air Quality Projects

WORK ELEMENT

FUNDING SUMMARY

REPORT SUMMARY

$1,615,552Total Budget

$0Balance Remaining for SFY 2016 or later is

66714-001

100% MORPC CMAQ

Transportation Services (Ridesharing) SFY14

This was closed in SFY 2014. No funds were expended in SFY 2015. See 66715-001 
for SFY 2015 activities.

$406,802Budget

$406,802Spent 6/30

66715-001

100% MORPC CMAQ

Transportation Services (Ridesharing) SFY15

RideSolutions continues to develop target messaging and special projects that assist 
in promoting TDM services. The program sponsors and develops program services 
based on the needs of the individual commuter, employers, job-ready/training 
programs, colleges/universities and communities throughout the region.  

Vanpool and carpool services continue to meet the needs of commuters. The 
program is developing and retaining partnerships with not-for-profit agencies, working 
with employers that are relocating their work sites, and assisting and leading 
employers in developing an overall environmental goal and plan for their work sites. 
RideSolutions is helping communities move forward in implementing TDM strategies 
that help relieve congestion in their neighborhoods, helping their residents to do their 
part to reduce fuel consumption, plus save money.  

RideSolutions and its TDM partners continue to stay abreast of research and trends 
and share best practices of new and innovative ways to promote the entire share-the-
ride and share-the-road concepts.

$715,000Budget

$714,122Spent 6/30

66731-000

100% MORPC CMAQ

Air Quality Awareness SFY14

See 66732-000 for all SFY 2015 activities.$368,750Budget

$373,406Spent 6/30

^ Project continues beyond SFY 2015



66732-000

80% MORPC CMAQ

Air Quality Awareness SFY15

In FY 15, the program maintained its daily air quality forecasting program, coordinated 
a marketing and public outreach campaign to educate the public about air quality, and 
engaged area businesses and governments in making voluntary commitments to 
improve air quality through the Take Five for Clean Air campaign. For the first time 
since MORPC began forecasting, the Central Ohio region experienced zero high 
ozone days during the 2014 ozone season, even while conditions were ideal for high 
ozone formation. MORPC continues to issue daily air quality forecasts, and issued 
one Air Quality Alert during the 2015 ozone season through June 30, 2015. MORPC 
upgraded the Central Ohio Air Quality Hotline, and added a Spanish language option 
to the hotline. MORPC coordinated a visit from Sonoma Technology, Inc., MORPC’s 
air quality forecasting firm, which included meetings with local TV meteorologists 
about air quality forecasting and ways MORPC can expand available resources for TV 
audiences. MORPC coordinated a comprehensive public outreach and marketing 
campaign with local television stations and other news sources, including the 
development of public service announcements with tips to educate residents about 
the health impacts of air pollution and actions that they can take to reduce pollution. 
MORPC also conducted a targeted e-mail and social media outreach campaign to 
enroll Central Ohioans to receive Air Quality Alerts. MORPC’s Take Five for Clean Air 
program earned commitments from 25 local governments and businesses to 
incorporate air-friendly practices into their workplaces and processes. In 2015 the US 
EPA announced a public comment period for its proposal to strengthen the National 
Ambient Air Quality Standards for ozone pollution. MORPC conducted a 
comprehensive public input process and engaged MORPC committees and 
stakeholder groups to submit comments on behalf of the region.

$125,000Budget

$105,705Spent 6/30

^ Project continues beyond SFY 2015



IV. Projects Undertaken By Other Entities

WORK ELEMENT

FUNDING SUMMARY

REPORT SUMMARY

$0Total Budget

66505-000

No funding

Ongoing Local Planning

MORPC regularly monitors local planning activities. A current library of new plans is 
maintained on the website under the Studies and Plans section.

MORPC staff regularly participates in planning efforts of local communities.

$0Budget

$0Spent 6/30

67401-000

No funding

Ongoing COTA Activities

COTA updates service three times a year - the first Monday of every January, May 
and September. Public information, review and comment take place before each 
service change. 

MORPC assisted with RideSolutions rideshare information during service change 
meetings as COTA implements some of the route changes as it implements the 
Transit System Redesign.

Coordinated with ODOT-6, COTA and public safety officials to establish COTA bus-on-
shoulders on I-670 from Downtown Columbus to I-270. 

MORPC participated in various NextGen meetings, task forces and committees.

Worked with the City of Groveport and COTA to establish a free shuttle for employees 
to use from COTA bus stops to work by COTA’s September service change.

$0Budget

$0Spent 6/30

67402-000

No funding

Ongoing DATA Activities

Staff continued to assist DATABus with the impacts of the 2010 Columbus UZA 
boundary change. Topics included the FTA funding transition from rural (§ 5311) to 
urban (5307), possible state funding changes and local match needs for capital and 
operating and other FTA funding sources.
Assisted DATABus with the 2016-2019 STIP/TIP update, route mapping, service 
changes and public involvement.  
Assisted DATABus with an RFP for the development of a Transit Development Plan 
and Local Funding Study, and the consultant selection.

$0Budget

$0Spent 6/30

^ Project continues beyond SFY 2015



 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Transportation Policy Committee 

 

FROM: 

 

Nick Gill, Assistant Director 

Transportation Systems & Funding  

 

DATE: 

 

September 4, 2015 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution T-15-15: "AMENDING THE STATE FISCAL 

YEAR (SFY) 2016-2019 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT 

PROGRAM" 
 

Proposed Resolution T-15-15 will add or modify eight projects on the SFY 2016-2019 

Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) with commitments totaling over $79 

million. These changes are necessary to enable these projects to advance using the 

identified sources of funding and to maintain fiscal constraint. This month the Ohio 

Department of Transportation (ODOT) will ask the Federal Highway Administration 

(FHWA) and the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) to amend the Statewide TIP to 

include these changes.  

 

Attachment 1 to the resolution provides a description of the funding and scope of 

each project, including a description of the bicycle and pedestrian components. The 

amendment includes two projects affecting MORPC-attributable funds: 

 

 Delaware County: Gemini Parkway Extension, to be implemented by ODOT 

(out-of-cycle request) 

 Etna Township: Taylor Road Widening 

 Pickerington: Center Road/Milnor Road/Meadows Boulevard intersection  

 

Below is an explanation of the proposed changes to the TIP.  

 

COTA (Central Ohio Transit Authority) requested the following additions and 

modifications to the TIP: 

 Modify funding for the Cleveland Avenue Bus Rapid Transit project 

 Remove the 2016 Paratransit Expansion project 

 Remove the Dublin Park and Ride project 

 Add the Cellular Connection for Buses project 

 Add the Strategic Land Purchases project 

 

DATABus (Delaware Area Transit Agency) requested the following additions and 

modifications to the TIP: 

 Add the DATABus Safety and Security project 

 Modify funding for the DATABus 2016 Bus Replacement project 



Resolution T-15-15 Memo 

Page 2 

 
 

 

Delaware County is requesting a new commitment of $1.5 million of MORPC-

attributable STP funds to cover an increase in the cost estimate for the Gemini 

Parkway extension. Columbus, ODOT, Westerville and NP Limited are also 

contributing funds to the project, with ODOT being the lead agency. MORPC 

received the request outside of its biennial project selection process. Following 

MORPC’s policies, Delaware County submitted a funding application, and MORPC 

staff evaluated it relative to other applications received last round. MORPC staff 

presented the scoring information to CAC, TAC and the Attributable Funds 

Committee and  recommended approval of the request. All three committees 

concurred in the staff recommendations. Additional detail on the scoring is 

available upon request. 

 

Etna Township was recently informed that its project, rather than the private 

utility, is responsible for costs to relocate the utility. The township is requesting a 

transfer of funds from right-of-way acquisition to utility relocation, as acquisition 

costs were less than estimated. An amendment is required to add the right-of-

way phase to the 2016-2019 TIP, because the right-of-way authorized in SFY 

2015 from the 2014-2017 TIP excluded any utility relocation. There is no net 

change to the amount of the MORPC-attributable funding commitment. 

 

Pickerington requested an increase in funding for right-of-way activities for the 

Center Road/Milnor Road/Meadows Boulevard intersection project. The cost 

estimate was revised because of unexpected utility relocation costs and higher 

costs for professional right-of-way services. MORPC-attributable funds for right-of-

way activities would increase from $180,000 to $318,700. The MORPC-

attributable funds for the entire project are still within the previous cap limit, but 

an amendment to the STIP is required because the right-of-way phase costs have 

increased significantly. 

 

NTG:NJV:bsn 

 

Attachments: 

 Project Map 

 Proposed Resolution T-15-15 

 



!
!
!

!
!

!

!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

!

!!

!

!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

!
!
!
!

!!

!

#*

DELAWARE

DELAWARE

FA
IRF

IEL
D

LIC
KIN

G
FR

AN
KL

IN

DELAWARE

FRANKLIN

§̈¦270

§̈¦71

§̈¦670

§̈¦71

§̈¦70

£¤42

£¤23

£¤33

£¤23

£¤23

£¤40£¤40

£¤23

£¤62

£¤33

£¤62

£¤36

£¤40

£¤36

£¤62

£¤42
¬«656

¬«315

¬«317

¬«315

¬«229

¬«521

¬«665

¬«37

¬«3

¬«750

¬«710

¬«37

¬«256

¬«16

¬«3

¬«204

¬«161

¬«674

¬«161

¬«310

¬«104

¬«317

¬«203

¬«605

¬«745

¬«61

¬«257

WOODTOWN RD

TRE NTON RD

BRYDEN RD

MAIN ST

MINK STREET RD

S S
EC

TIO
N 

LIN
E R

D

MOCK RD

SIN
CL

AIR
 RD

TAYLOR RD

FRANK RD

HOR SE S HO E RD

N 
HA

MI
LT

ON
 R

D
HA

MI
LT

ON
 R

D

POLARIS PKWY

LEWIS CENTER RD

W HENDERSON RD

HOLTON RD

HUBBARD RD

E COLLEGE AVE

PA
RS

ON
S A

VE

CHESHIRE RD

GLICK RD

LIB
ER

T Y
R D

BRAND RD

SNOUFFER RD

DARBYCREEKDR

SULLIVANT AVE

MI
LN

OR
 RD

 N
W

CLARK STATE RD

REFUGEE RD

W LANE AVE

COSGRAY RD
WILLIAMS RD

FISHINGER RD

WEST CASE RD

MOOBERRY ST

HARD RD

VAUSE RD

W ALTON PKWY

WA
TK

IN
S R

D 
SW

KA
RL

 R
D

SHIER-RINGS RD

RENNER RD

E DUBLIN-GRANVILLE RD

HOME RD

KING AVE

HAVENS CORNERS RD

EASTON WAY

KIT
ZM

I LL
ER

R D

WHITE RD

POR T R
D

N O
E

BI
X B

YR
D

W WATERLOO ST

ROWE RD

SUNBURY R
D

CENTRAL COLLEGE RD

STRINGTOWN RD

COOPER RD

GA
NT

ZR
D

RADNOR RD

ROHR RD

FREDR ICKS RD

PIKE ST SW

HOSKINS RD

CENTERBURG

RD

WINCHESTER RD NW

NO
RT

ON
RD

W MAIN ST

VALLEYVIEW DR

MA
IZE

 RD

LEE
 RD

S OL
D 3C

H W
Y

E WHITTIER ST

WINCHESTER PIKE

DU BLIN
RD

EAKIN RD

HARRIO TT RD

E POWELL RD

BOWTOWN
RD

CHATTERTON RD

E LIVINGSTON AVE

AGLER RD

HILLIARD
ROMERD

ALKIRE RD

E FULTON ST

FISHER RD

COUN
TY

R O
AD

60
5

BRIGGS RD

HOME RD

GROVE CITY RD

OPOSSUM RUN RD

H AY DEN RUN RD

EB
RI

GH
T R

D

W MOUND ST

HYATTS RD

J O
YC

EA
VE

S H
O O

KR

D

REFUGEE RD

MCCUTCHEON RD

ORDERS RD

E HUDSON ST

BETHEL RD

TU
S S

IC
S T

RE
ET

R D

BIG RUN SOUTH RD

E 5TH AVE

STI MMEL RD
THURMAN AVE

MCCOY RD

E 11TH AVE

RENSCH RD

MORSE RD

GE
OR

GE
SV

IL L
ER

D

MCKINLEY AVE

S FRONT ST
E WEBER RD

S Y
EA

RL
IN

G 
RD

WALNUT ST

BU RNT P OND
RD

CLIME RD

FERRIS RD

CORR RD

LO
CK

BO
UR

NE
 R

D

B R
EN

TN
E L

LA
VE

VANS VALLEY RD

L ONG RDGROVEPORTR D

CEMETERY RD

LANCASTER
AVE

INNIS RD

LIN
W O

RT

H
RD

GEMINI PL

WATKINS RD

PEACHBLOW RD

FREBIS AVE

LEONARDSBURG RDM AIN RD

CONCORD RD

DAVIDSON RD

OLIV E GREEN RD

SU
MM

IT 
RD

 SW

HARRISBURG LONDON RD

RO
ME

 CO
RN

ER
S R

D

PITTSBURGH DR

SCIOTO DARBY CREEK RD

CU
R T

IS
R D

LUKENS RD

HALL RD

KILBOURNE RD

PANHANDL E
RD

CO
ND

IT 
RD

DAVID RD

DEMPSEY RD

CA
RR

OL
L-N

OR
TH

ER
N 

RD
 N

W

MILLS RD HARTFORD RD

MORSE RD

B ERLIN STATION RD

SMI T HS MILL RD

SMOTHERS RD
COUNTY LINE RD

GROVEPORT RD

RO
CK

M I
LL R

D N W

EM
ER

AL
D

PK

WY

ZUBER RD

HART RD

RINGS RD

MARCY RD NW

DILDINE RDRIVER RD

E WAL NUT ST

BR IN DLE RD

FONTANELLE RD

HAYES RD

FANCHER RD

DAVIS RD

GARDNER RD

N
TH

RE
EB

'S
&

K
R D

N 
CO

UN
TY

 LI
NE

 RD

N OLD3C HWY

LITHOPOLIS RD

O RE
GO

N
RD

TH
OM

AS
 R

D

ELDER RD

N GALENA RD

COUNTY HOME RD

ROBERTS RD

ST
AH

L R
D

JONES
RD

LONDON LANCASTER RD

BEATTY RD

KROPP RD
HOUCHARD RD

HEADLEYS MILLRD
SW

STEAMTOWN RD

TAWAY RD

ST
EIT

Z R
D

PATTERS ON RD

HU
N T

LE
Y

RD
S O

LD
 ST

AT
E R

D

ALT
ON

RD

N
HI GH

ST

S AWMILL
P KWY

ALT ON
&

DARBY CREEK
RD

HA
RL

EM
RD

COLE
RD

ST
EL

ZE
R R

D

FRAN TZ
R D

AMITY RD

KENNY
RD

ALUM
CRE EK DR

N HAGUE AVE

HO
LT

 RD

O LENTANGY RIVER
RD

AM
AN

DA
-N

OR
TH

ER
N 

RD
 N

W

AV
ER

YR
D

BA
BB

ITT
 R

D

MI
NK

ST
SW

G O
DO

W N
RD

N WILSON RD

NORTHWEST
BLV D

RE
ED

 R
D

WOR
TH

ING
TO

N RD

CHE RRY

BOTTOM
RD

PIC
KE

RI
NG

TO
N

R D
NW

LONDONRD

AFRICA RD

DU
NH A

M
RD

LA
CK

EY
 O

LD
 ST

AT
E R

D

TRE
MONT R

D
GR

A N
D V

IE W
AV

E

N 
CA

SS
AD

Y A
VE

TR
OY

 RD

OSTRANDER RD

POST RD

WARRENSBURG RD
DE

MO
RE

ST
RD

NEIL AVE

L EA P R D

GA
L L

OW
AY

RD

S
UN

BU
RY

RD

FLI
NT

 RD

SA
N C

U S
B L

VD

S GAL ENARD

MI
LL

ER
-PA

UL
RD

AL UM
CRE EK DR

WALKER RD

BR
ICE

 R
D

SA
WM

ILL
 R

D

A VE RY RD

ST
YG

LE
R R

D 
N

GE
ND

ER
 R

D

SS
PR

IN
G

RD

PON TIUS
RD

N
OL

D S
TA

TE
RD

BO
WE

N 
RD

SCHLEPPI R D

LEPPERT RD

ELLIOTTRD

RED
BA

NK
RD

MC
NA

UG
HT

EN
 R

D

LOTT
RD

ASHLEY
RD

LAW
RE

N C
E

RD

N 
WA

GG
ON

ER
 RD

CE
DA

R 
HI

LL
 R

D 
NW

CA
R T

ER
'S

CO
RN

E R
RD

B IG
GE

RT
RD

RIC
HA

RD
SO

N 
RD

PENN RD

YO
RK

 RD
 SW

1707

GALENA

OSTRANDER

ASHLEY

GROVEPORT

GAHANNA

BEXLEY

WHITEHALL

RIVERLEA

URBANCREST

VALLEYVIEW

OBETZ

UPPER
ARLINGTON

GRANDVIEW
HEIGHTS

BRICE

MINERVA
PARK

PATASKALA

HILLIARD

PICKERINGTON

CANAL
WINCHESTER

LITHOPOLIS

REYNOLDSBURG

SHAWNEE
HILLS

LOCKBOURNE
HARRISBURG

DUBLIN

WORTHINGTON

WESTERVILLE

GROVE
CITY

COLUMBUS

POWELL

DELAWARE

SUNBURY

NEW
ALBANY

17
98

2859

26
34

!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
! !

!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

!!!!!!!

S 3RD ST

E GOODALE ST

MT VERNONAVE

PA
RK

 ST

E MAIN STS FRONT ST

GOODALE BLVD

BRYDEN RD

SA
IN

T C
LA

IR 
AV

E

MOU
ND

ST

NAGHTEN ST

OAK ST

SULLIVANT AVE

E RICH ST

E GAY ST

MO
HA

WK
 ST

E TOWN STS GLENWOOD AVE

S HARTFORD AVE

VINE ST

E STATE ST

STARL IN G
ST

W GOODALE ST

N FRONT ST
S 2ND ST

W STATE ST

E LONG ST

MCDOWELL ST

LONG ST

DE
NN

ISO
N 

AV
E

E SPRING ST

MCKINLEY AVE

THOMAS AVE

MARCONI BLVD

S HIGH ST

W FULTON ST

NE
IL 

AV
E

£¤40

£¤62

£¤33

£¤23
§̈¦71

§̈¦70

§̈¦670

2634

DOWNTOWN   COLUMBUS

Mid-Ohio  Regio n a l Pla n n in g Co m m issio n
111 Liberty Street

Co lum bus, Ohio  43215
614.228.2663
August 2015

Plea se check www.m o rpc.o rg fo r
upda tes to  this m a p a n d pro ject listin g.

SFY 2016-2019
Tra n spo rta tio n  Im pro vem en t Pro gra m

Resolution T-15-15
Amendment to the TIP
Project Location Map

±
0 3 6

Miles

The information shown on this map is compiled from various
sources available to us which we believe to be reliable.

n:\arcgis\core\tip\2016_2019\tip amndmt t-15-15.mxd aug15

This m a p prepa red in
co o pera tio n  with the
U.S. Depa rtm en t o f

Tra n spo rta tio n ’s Federa l
Highwa y Adm in istra tio n
a n d Federa l Tra n sit

Adm in istra tio n , the Ohio
Depa rtm en t o f

Tra n spo rta tio n ,  a n d
lo ca l co m m un ities.

Major Widening
New Road

New Interchange
Minor Widening/Safety Improvement

Interchange Modification
Intersection Modification

Maintenance/Resurfacing
Bridge Repair/Replacement

Traffic Signal Upgrade
Streetscape/Study/Other
Bikeway/Sidewalk/Transit
Streetscape/Study/Other

MORPC Project Identification

Construction Phase
FY 2016 - 2019

Construction Phase
after FY 2019

ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ

#*

!(

!(
#*

!(

")

ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ

!(

ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ

(Construction not part of TIP)

")

")

")

ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ

Planning Area

100 100100 100 100 100100 100

#*#*



RESOLUTION T-15-15 

 

“AMENDING THE STATE FISCAL YEAR (SFY) 2016-2019 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT 

PROGRAM” 

 

WHEREAS, the Transportation Policy Committee of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

(MORPC) adopted the SFY 2016-2019 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) by Resolution  

T-12-15; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Central Ohio Transit Authority has requested the addition and modification of projects 

on the 2016-2019 TIP as shown in Attachment 1; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Delaware Area Transit Agency has requested the addition and modification of projects 

on the 2016-2019 TIP as shown in Attachment 1; and 

 

WHEREAS, Delaware County and the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) have requested the 

modification of one project, to be implemented by ODOT, on the 2016-2019 TIP as shown in 

Attachment 1; and 

 

WHEREAS, Etna Township has requested the modification of one project on the 2016-2019 TIP as 

shown in Attachment 1; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Pickerington has requested the modification of one project on the 2016-2019 

TIP as shown in Attachment 1; and 

 

WHEREAS, the projects are consistent with the transportation policies, plans, and programs, 

including the most recent Metropolitan Transportation Plan adopted by the Transportation Policy 

Committee; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Community Advisory Committee at its meeting on August 31, 2015, and the 

Transportation Advisory Committee at its meeting on September 2, 2015, recommended approval of 

this resolution to the Transportation Policy Committee; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRANSPORTATION POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 

PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the MORPC SFY 2016-2019 TIP be amended to include the project information 

as shown in Attachment 1. 

 

Section 2. That it affirms that the fiscal balance of the SFY 2016-2019 TIP is maintained. 

 

Section 3. That the determination of conformity between the TIP and the State Implementation 

Plan (SIP) is hereby reaffirmed, as the projects are exempt from conformity 

requirements or have been included in the most recent air quality conformity 

approval. 

 

Section 4. That this resolution will be transmitted to ODOT and all local agencies listed as 

sponsoring agencies in Attachment 1 for appropriate action. 

 



Resolution T-15-15 

Page 2 

 

 

 

Section 5. That the Transportation Policy Committee finds and determines that all formal 

deliberations and actions of this committee concerning and relating to the adoption 

of this resolution were taken in open meetings of this committee.  

 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Matt Greeson, Acting Chair 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

_________________________________________  

Date 

 

Prepared by: Transportation Staff 

 

Attachment: 

 Amended Project Information for the SFY 2016-2019 TIP 



Resolution T-15-15

Attachment 1 - Amended Project Information

Agency: COTA PID: 101565 TIP ID: 3093 MTP ID:  773

Project Type(s): Transit Activity Air Quality: Exempt

Co-Route-Sec: FRA-COTA Cellular Connection for Buses- Length (mi.):

Other $2,500,000Local2016

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

COTA Cellular Connection for Buses, Transit Activity, includes Wi-Fi.

Not applicable. 

Not applicable. 

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

Total: $2,500,000

Agency: COTA PID: 101566 TIP ID: 3094 MTP ID:  773

Project Type(s): Transit Activity Air Quality: Exempt

Co-Route-Sec: FRA-COTA Strategic Land Purchases- Length (mi.):

Right-of-Way $4,060,000Local2016

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

COTA Strategic Land Purchases, Transit Activity, locations not yet specified.

Not applicable. 

Not applicable. 

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

Total: $4,060,000

Thursday, September 03, 2015 Page 1 of 5

Funds in FYs prior to 2016 are not included in this report nor in the 2016-2019 Transportation Improvement Program.



Resolution T-15-15

Attachment 1 - Amended Project Information

Agency: COTA PID: 94357 TIP ID: 2634 MTP ID:  12

Project Type(s): Transit Expansion Capital Air Quality: System Analyzed

Co-Route-Sec: FRA-COTA Cleveland Ave BRT- Length (mi.): 15

Purchase $6,697,420SEC 53092016

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

COTA Cleveland Ave BRT, Transit Expansion Capital, CMAX Bus Rapid Transit on Cleveland Ave from Downtown to 

Polaris Parkway/Africa Rd - PE, NEPA ROW, Con including SR-161 Transit Center and Northern Lights P & R and 

purchase of 15 40’ CNG Buses

Modify existing facilities. 

Yes - Type to be determined. 

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

Purchase $1,674,355Local-Transit2016

Right-of-Way $3,124,277SEC 53092016

Right-of-Way $781,069Local2016

Construction $6,076,917SEC 53092016

Construction $937,896Local2016

Construction $581,334Local-Transit2016

Purchase $7,324,800SEC 53092017

Purchase $1,831,200Local-Transit2017

Construction $20,928,014SEC 53092017

Construction $5,232,003Local-Transit2017

Total: $55,189,285

Agency: DATA PID: 101564 TIP ID: 3091 MTP ID:  773

Project Type(s): Transit Activity Air Quality: Exempt

Co-Route-Sec: DEL-DATA Safety & Security- Length (mi.):

Other $8,000SEC 53072016

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

DATA Safety & Security, Transit Activity, On-board M to M WiFi

Not applicable. 

Not applicable. 

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

Other $2,000Local2016

Total: $10,000

Thursday, September 03, 2015 Page 2 of 5

Funds in FYs prior to 2016 are not included in this report nor in the 2016-2019 Transportation Improvement Program.



Resolution T-15-15

Attachment 1 - Amended Project Information

Agency: DATA PID: 95022 TIP ID: 2780 MTP ID:  773

Project Type(s): Transit Activity Air Quality: Exempt

Co-Route-Sec: DEL-DATA 2016 Bus Replacement- Length (mi.):

Other $116,000SEC 53072016

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

DATA 2016 Bus Replacement, Transit Activity, LTN - Fiberglass Replacement (4).

No information provided.

No information provided.

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

Other $100,000SEC 53392016

Other $54,000Local-Transit2016

Total: $270,000

Agency: Etna Township PID: 90385 TIP ID: 1798 MTP ID:  871

Project Type(s): Minor Widening/Signalization Air Quality: Exempt

Co-Route-Sec: LIC-TR169-04.60 Length (mi.): 0.61

Right-of-Way $64,000CMAQ-M2016 MORPC Funds

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

Taylor Rd from Old Taylor Rd to 475' S of Windsor Dr, Minor Widening from 2 lanes to 3 lanes & Signalization, with a 

new signal at Palmer Rd

Sidewalk on 2 sides. 8' sidewalk on west side; 5' sidewalk on east side. 1.22 mi. added to ped network.

Other. 8' sidewalk on west side. 0.61 mi. added to bike network.

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

Right-of-Way $16,000Local2016

Construction $2,626,153CMAQ-M2016 MORPC Funds

Construction $1,056,686Local2016

Construction $367,373Local-Other2016

Total: $4,130,212

Thursday, September 03, 2015 Page 3 of 5

Funds in FYs prior to 2016 are not included in this report nor in the 2016-2019 Transportation Improvement Program.



Resolution T-15-15

Attachment 1 - Amended Project Information

Agency: ODOT 6 PID: 95706 TIP ID: 2859 MTP ID:  1259

Project Type(s): New Roadway/Realignment Air Quality: System Analyzed

Co-Route-Sec: DEL-Gemini Pkwy-Extension Length (mi.): 0.4

Construction $3,000,000HSIP2016

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

Gemini Pkwy extension from Orion Pl to Worthington Rd & Powell Rd, New Roadway, 5 lanes & Realignment, Connect 

Gemini Pkwy to Worthington Rd near the intersection of Powell Rd and Worthington Rd.  Realign the intersection of 

Powell and Worthington roads. 

Sidewalk on 1 side, multi-use path on 1 side. 5 ft wide sidewalks on south side of Gemini Pl and on west side of 

Worthington Rd between Polaris and Gemini Pl.  10 ft path on opposite side. 0.8 mi. added to ped network.

Multi-use path. 10 ft wide path on north side of Gemini Pl and on east side of Worthington Rd between Polaris Pkwy 

and Gemini Pl. 0.4 mi. added to bike network.

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

Construction $1,500,000STP-M2016 MORPC Funds - Cap Amount

Construction $7,000,000Local2016

Total: $11,500,000

Agency: Pickerington PID: 90384 TIP ID: 1707 MTP ID:  1088

Project Type(s): Intersection Modification Air Quality: Exempt

Co-Route-Sec: FAI-CR020-08.90 Length (mi.): 0.1

PE-Environmental Study $35,430STP-M2016 MORPC Funds

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

Center St at Milnor Rd and Meadows Blvd, Intersection Modification, Full reconstruction of the intersection to a 

modern roundabout, increase sight distance, modify geometry, and allow all turning movements.

Sidewalk on 1 side. Connect sidewalk from Meadows Drive to Longview Street along Milnor Road. 0.1 mi. added to 

ped network.

Bicycle lanes. Climbing lanes proposed in the uphill direction. 0.1 mi. added to bike network.

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

PE-Environmental Study $8,858Local2016

Right-of-Way $166,400CMAQ-M2016 MORPC Funds - Cap Amount

Right-of-Way $36,870STP-M2016 MORPC Funds

Right-of-Way $50,818Local2016

Right-of-Way $80,000STP-M2017 MORPC Funds

Right-of-Way $20,000Local2017

Construction $400,160CMAQ-M2017 MORPC Funds - Cap Amount

Construction $770,100STP-M2017 MORPC Funds

Construction $346,065Local2017

Total: $1,914,700

Thursday, September 03, 2015 Page 4 of 5

Funds in FYs prior to 2016 are not included in this report nor in the 2016-2019 Transportation Improvement Program.



Resolution T-15-15

Attachment 1 - Amended Project Information

Summary of Funding Sources

Source Description Total Amount

CMAQ-M Congestion Mitigation/Air Quality Improvement, Attributable to MORPC $3,256,713

HSIP Highway Safety Improvement Program $3,000,000

Local Local Public Agency $16,779,391

Local-Other Local Public Agency Funds or Other Source $367,373

Local-Transit Local Public Transit Authority $9,372,892

SEC 5307 Transit Formula Block Grants $124,000

SEC 5309 Transit Discretionary Funds $44,151,428

SEC 5339 Transit Bus and Bus Facilities $100,000

STP-M Surface Transportation Program, Attributable to MORPC $2,422,400

Grand Total $79,574,197

Thursday, September 03, 2015 Page 5 of 5

Funds in FYs prior to 2016 are not included in this report nor in the 2016-2019 Transportation Improvement Program.


